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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended: September 30, 2012
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 000-54335

InspireMD, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 26-212383¢
(State or other jurisdiction « (I.LR.S. Employe
incorporation or organizatioi Identification No.)

4 Menorat Hamaor St.
Tel Aviv, Israel 67448
(Address of principal executive offices)
(Zip Code)

972-3-691-7691
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area rode

Indicate by check mark whether registrant (1) filad fall reports required to be filed by Sectiondt3.5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been subjec
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayss¥] No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). ¥ds No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large accelerated fitaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated file(] Accelerated filelx]

Non-accelerated file(d Smaller reporting compar]
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). Yed]l No

The number of shares of the registrant’'s commockst0.0001 par value, outstanding as of Novemb&012: 71,374,976.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable

Trade, ne
Other
Prepaid expenst
Inventory:
On hanc
On consignment
Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT , net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred debt issuance co

Funds in respect of employees rights upon retiremen

Total other non-current assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.

ASSETS

INSPIREMD, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

September 30 June 30,
2012

8,297 $ 10,28
37 37
1,07¢ 1,824
40¢ 264
56 93
2,07¢ 1,744
22 63
11,97 14,30¢
46¢ 462
874 961
304 282
1,17¢ 1,248
13,61f $ 16,01«




INSPIREMD, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

September 30 June 30,
2012 2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrue
Trade $ 55¢ $ 441
Other 2,62¢ 2,92¢
Advanced payment from custom 16¢ 174
Deferred revenues 10 1C
Total current liabilities 3,361 3,55(
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Liability for employees rights upon retireme 394 354
Convertible loar 5,63t 5,01¢
Contingently redeemable warrants 4,97¢ 1,70¢
Total long-term liabilities 11,00¢ 7,07¢
Total liabilities 14,37 10,62¢
EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY):
Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 129)00Ghares authorized; 68,596,9(
and 68,160,161 shares issued and outstanding &rSieer 30, 2012 and June 30, 2C 7 7
Additional paic-in capital 50,46« 49,10:
Accumulated deficit (51,22Y) (43,72))
Total equity (capital deficiency) (756) 5,38¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 13,61 $ 16,01+

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.




INSPIREMD, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and @eestata)

Three months endec

September 30
2012 2011

REVENUES $ 50¢ $ 1,98¢
COST OF REVENUES 23C 801
GROSS PROFIT 27¢ 1,18t
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Research and developmt 94¢ 547

Selling and marketin 40z 302

General and administrative 2,212 2,48¢

Total operating expenses 3,56( 3,33¢
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (3,28)) (2,150)
FINANCIAL EXPENSES, net:

Interest on convertible loan and revaluation of @aently redeemable warrar 4,21z

Other financial expenst 5 10¢
LOSS BEFORE TAX EXPENSES (7,499 (2,25%)
TAX EXPENSES 7 25
NET LOSS $ (7,500 $ (2,287
NET LOSS PER SHARE- basic and diluted $ (0.1 $ (0.04)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK U SED IN

COMPUTING NET LOSS PER SHARE - basic and diluted 68,296,94 64,300,68

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.




INSPIREMD, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to mshaised in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortization of property, plard aquipmen
Change in liability for employees right upon retirent
Financial expenses (incom
Share-based compensation expen
Loss on amounts funded in respect of employeesigpon retirement, ni
Changes in operating asset and liability ite
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expel
Decrease (increase) in trade receiva
Decrease (increase) in other receival
Decrease (increase) in inventory on consignr
Increase in inventory on hai
Increase (decrease) in trade paya
(Increase) in other payables and advance paymamtdustomers
Net cash (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in restricted ca
Purchase of property, plant and equipr
Amounts funded in respect of employee rights ugdinament
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Exercise of options and warrants
Repayment of long-term loan
Net cash provided by financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING O F THE
PERIOD

BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD

Purchasing of property, plant and equipment onitegdl in consideration of share-base

payment

3 months endec

September 30

2012 2011
(7,506 $ (2,287
34 14

40 (25)
3,98¢ 204
931 1,83¢

4

37 (32)
74€ (1,169
(144) 53
41 (20)
(332) (439
11¢ (201)
(302) 19
(2,356) (2,065
302

(35) (56)
(22) 17
(57) 264
432 1,50(
(93

432 1,407
(6) (199
(1,987) (585)
10,28+ 8,07(
8,291 $ 7,48¢
$ 62

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

InspireMD, Inc., formerly Saguaro Resources, Iftbe “Company”), a public company, is a Delawargooation formed on
February 29, 2008. On March 28, 2011, the Compaaynged its name to InspireMD, Inc. in connectiothwai share exchange
transaction between the Company and InspireMD kttimited company incorporated under the lawsef$tate of Israel in April
2005.

The Company has had recurring losses and negatsreftows from operating activities and has sigatfit future commitments.
For the three months ended September 30, 201Z,dhgpany had losses of approximately $7.5 milliod nagative cash flows
from operating activities of approximately $2.4 lioih. Additionally, as of September 30, 2012, then@any has a capital
deficiency of $756,000. The Company’s managemelig\ees that its working capital as of September28,2 of approximately
$8.6 million should enable it to continue fundihg thegative cash flows from operating activitiesl@ctober 2013, when its
senior secured convertible debentures (the “20I&/€xible Debentures”) are subject to a noncontihgedemption option that
could require the Company to make a payment of3d#lion, including accrued interest. Since thenr@any expects to continue
incurring negative cash flows from operations antight of the cash requirement in connection tlith 2012 Convertible
Debentures, there is substantial doubt about tiepgaay’s ability to continue operating as a goingaan. These financial
statements include no adjustments of the valuessdts and liabilities and the classification tbkrié any, that will apply if the
Company is unable to continue operating as a guangern.

The Company will need to raise further capitalahe future point in time, through the sale of addl equity securities or debt.
The Company'’s future capital requirements and tfegjaacy of the Company’s available funds will depen many factors,
including the Company’s ability to successfully aoercialize the Company’s MGuaf¥ products, development of future
products, competing technological and market dgraknts, and the need to enter into collaboratiagtis ather companies or
acquire other companies or technologies to enhancemplement the Company’s product offerings. Havethe Company may
be unable to raise sufficient additional capitakwlthe Company needs it or with favorable termg fBhms of any securities
issued by the Company in future financings may beenfavorable to new investors, and may includéspeaces, superior voting
rights and the issuance of warrants or other dévizaecurities, which may have a further dilutéféect on the holders of any of
the Company’s securities then outstanding. If tbenGany is unable to obtain adequate funds on reat®terms, the Company
will need to curtail operations significantly, inding possibly postponing or halting the Comparyrstes States of America
(“U.S.”) Food and Drug Administration clinical tisaor entering into financing agreements with waative terms.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finand&tements have been prepared on the same badie asrual consolidat
financial statements. In the opinion of managemtrd, financial statements reflect all adjustmenmtsich include only norm
recurring adjustments, necessary to present fahly financial position and results of operationsté Company. The
consolidated financial statements and notes themetaunaudited and should be read in conjunctidgh thie Company audite
financial statements for the six month period endi@de 30, 2012, as found in the Company’s Tramsi@eport on Form 16T,
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissinrSeptember 11, 2012. The balance sheet for Jun2032@ was derived fro
the Companys audited financial statements for the six monthiogeended June 30, 2012. The results of operafimnthe thre
months ended September 30, 2012 are not necessdiiative of results that could be expected far éntire fiscal year.




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 3- EQUITY:

On August 1, 2012, the Company’s board of direcisssed to a consultant options with certain macketditions to purchase
200,000 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$#.18 per share, the closing price of the comstock on the date of grant.

On August 27, 2012, the Company’s board of directegsued to a member of the immediate family ofGE® options to purchase
243,483 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$#.45 per share, the closing price of the comstock on the date of grant.
See Note 8.

On August 27, 2012, the Company's board of direcpproved the extension of 121,740 options prelyagranted to a member
the immediate family of the CEO. The options warpmosed to expire on October 2, 2012. Followingektension, the options
can be exercised until September 30, 2014.

During the three months ended September 30, 2B&2ZZompany issued a total of 436,742 shares obitamon stock in
connection with the exercise of 436,742 optionswadants. The Company received aggregate caskgideequal to
approximately $432,000 in connection with such eises.

Basic and diluted net loss per share is computediigling the net loss for the period by the weaghtiverage number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. The calaradf diluted net loss per share excludes poteatidihary shares as the effect is
anti-dilutive. Potential ordinary shares are comsguliof incremental ordinary shares issuable uperexkercise of share options,
warrants and convertible loans.

For the three month periods ended September 3@ &8d 2011, all ordinary shares underlying outstandptions, warrants and
convertible loans have been excluded from the tatiom of the diluted loss per share since thdeatfwas anti-dilutive. The total
number of ordinary shares related to outstandiripog, warrants and convertible loans excluded ftieencalculations of diluted
loss per share were 32,190,854 and 17,122,798déahtee month periods ended September 30, 2012Cdrd respectively.

NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE MEASURMENT:
a. Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair \Alue. The Company measures fair value and disclosesdhie
measurements for financial assets and liabilitt@dr value is based on the price that would beivedeto sell an asset or paid

to transfer a liability in an orderly transactiostiveen market participants at the measurement

The accounting standard establishes a fair valiatdhy that prioritizes observable and unobseevaiputs used to measure
fair value into three broad levels, which are dibsct below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active misrkigat are accessible at the measurement daasdets or liabilities. The
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priorityL&vel 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inmitguoted on active markets, but corroboratethbyket data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when litttammarket data is available. The fair value higg gives the lowest
priority to Level 3 inputs.




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE MEASURMENT (continued):

The following table summarizes the balances fos¢hiinancial liabilities where fair value measuretseare estimated
utilizing Level 2 and Level 3 inputs:

September 3( June 30
Level 2012 2012
($ in thousands)

2012 Warrants at fair valt 2 $ 497¢ $ 1,70¢€
Embedded derivative 3 - 49
$ 497¢ $ 1,75¢

The following table summarizes the activity for skdinancial liabilities where fair value measuratseare estimated utilizir
Level 3 inputs:

Embedded

Derivative
($ in thousands
Balance as of July 1, 201 $ 48
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealizedgluthed in earnings - financial expenses , net (4 )

Balance as of September 30, 20: $

Level 3 liabilities include an embedded derivatigiated to the Company’s 2012 Convertible Debestufee Company
values the Level 3 embedded derivative using arnially developed valuation model, whose inputtuithe recovery rates,
credit spreads, stock prices, and volatilitiesjescribed below.

The fair value of the warrants included in Levé$ 2stimated using the Black Scholes model.

In calculating the fair value of warrants at Sefdien30, 2012, the Company used the following assiomg expected term
4.52 years; expected volatility of 69.9%; risk-fiaterest rate of 0.54%; and dividend yield of 0%.

b. Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Measured Usindrair Value Method

The carrying amounts of financial instruments ided in working capital approximate their fair vakither because these
amounts are presented at fair value or due toelagively short-term maturities of such instrumetitsneasured at fair value
in the financial statements, these financial imsnts would be classified as Level 3 in the falugéierarchy. The carrying
amount of the Company'’s other financial long-teseeds approximate their fair value.

The fair value of the Company’s 2012 ConvertibldBrtures approximates the carrying amount (aftasidering the
beneficial conversion feature). If measured atyalue in the financial statements, these finarinsttuments would be
classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 5 - INVENTORY ON HAND:

September 30 June 30,
2012 2012
($ in thousands)
Finished good $ 752 $ 47¢
Work in proces: 1,201 1,11¢
Raw materials and supplies 122 15C
$ 2,07¢ $ 1,744

NOTE 6 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS - OTHER:

September 30 June 30,
2012 2012
($ in thousands)
Employees and employee institutic $ 44z $ 43¢
Accrued vacation and recreation 25€ 272
Accrued clinical trial expense 33¢ 607
Provision for sales commissio 18¢ 194
Accrued expense 1,25¢ 1,19
Due to government institutior 23 22
Provision for return: 55 13¢
Taxes payable 72 56
$ 2,62¢ $ 2,92¢

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES, NET:

September 30
2012 2011
(% in thousands)

Bank commission $ 9% 8
Interest incom 9 (20)
Exchange rate differenc 5 10t
Interest expense (including debt issuan

costs) 98¢ 15
Change in fair value of warrants and

embedded derivatives 3,22¢

$ 4,21¢ $ 10€




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTIES:

On July 2, 2012, effective August 1, 2012, InspiMd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compangjered into a consultancy
agreement (the “First Consultancy Agreement”) withnember of the immediate family of the CEO, punst@ which the
consultant would be retained for sales servicessuRunt to the agreement, she would be entitledited fee of $625 (2,500 NIS)
for each full working day and a bonus fee up to,820 (40,000 NIS) upon 100% achievement of setabibfes. The First
Consultancy Agreement was terminated on Septenthe2( 2.

On August 27, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. entered int@ased consultancy agreement (the “Second ConsyltAgreement”) with a
member of the immediate family of the CEO, pursuamnhich, the consultant would be retained foesand marketing services.
Pursuant to the agreement, she is entitled to ptio purchase 243,483 shares of common stocketeanise price of $1.45 per
share. The revised agreement also extended torSlepte2014 the exercise date on 121,740 optiongstded to expire upon the
termination of the First Consultancy Agreement

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

a.

Commitment

In March 2010, the Company entered into a licergseaanent to use a stent design (“MGuard Prithg). Pursuant to the
agreement, the licensor is entitled to receive ltgyEayments of 7% of net sales outside the UnBates and, for sales within
the United States, royalty payments as follows:of%et sales for the first $10,000,000 of net sales 10% of net sales for
net sales exceeding $10,000,0

On October 22, 2012, the Company, InspireMD Ltdl #ire licensor entered into the First Amendmerttitense Agreement,
which amended the license agreement described aBavguant to the amendment, amongst other thingdicensor agreed
to reduce the royalty owed with respect to saledlGluard Primé™ to 2.9% of all net sales both inside and outsigelits. ir
exchange for (i) InspireMD Ltd. waiving $85,000reggulatory fees for the CE Mark that are owed leylitensor to
InspireMD Ltd., (ii) InspireMD Ltd. making full paypent of royalties in the amount of $205,587 duthtolicensor as of
September 30, 2012 and (iii) 860,000 shares of€tmapany’s common stock, that were valued at theimipprice of the
common stock on October 19, 2012 at $2.05 per shiireconsideration of the transaction is to berded as intangible as:
and In process research and development expensed da the MGuard Prin™ registration status in the various territori

Litigation

In February 2011, representatives of a third padjcated that they intend to seek damages fronCtirapany in connection
with certain finders’ fees that they claim are oviedhem. The claimants’ demand was for approxitgaéig million. The
claimants’ most recent settlement demand, conveyégbril 2011, was for a total of $250,000 in casid 250,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock. To date, no lawsuittess filed and the Company has not accrued amsgpa connection
with this matter because the Compangianagement, after considering the views of galleounsel as well as other factor:
of the opinion that a loss to the Company is neigliebable nor in an amount or range of loss thastimable.




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 9 - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (con tinue):

In February 2011, a service provider submittecaintlgainst the Company in the amount of $327,006e Magistrate’s
Court in Tel Aviv, claiming a future success fe&l @ommission for assistance in finding the Compsuaystributor in Brazil.
The Company’s management, after considering thesvi its legal counsel as well as other factasprded a provision of
$327,000 in the financial statements in the fitsarger of 2011. The related expense has been egtéod'General and
administrative” within the Consolidated Statemeasft®perations. On October 5, 2011, the Company fileounter claim
against the plaintiff in the amount of $29,000.

In August 2011, a former senior employee submitbetthe Regional Labor Court in Tel Aviv a claim ags the Company for
(i) compensation of $118,000 and (ii) a declaratofing that he is entitled to exercise 486,966a@pt to purchase shares of
the Company’s common stock at an exercise pri®dfOl per share, of which, 81,161 options weredisgtuted by the
Company. On October 21, 2012, the former senior@yep exercised 81,161 options. After considerirg\iews of its legal
counsel as well as other factors, the Company’sagement is of the opinion that a loss to the Comjgneither probable
nor in an amount or range of loss that is estimable

In November 2011, a previous service provider splreMD Ltd. submitted to the Magistrate Court il Aviv a claim
against the Company, InspireMD Ltd. and the Comjsatinen President and the Company’s CEO for a datdey ruling that

it is entitled to convert options to purchase 18,65InspireMD Ltd.’s ordinary shares at an exexqisice of $3.67 per share
into options to purchase 110,785 shares of the Gogip common stock at an exercise price of $0.45 pamesland to conve
options to purchase 4,816 of InspireMD Ltd.’s oredinshares at an exercise price of $10 per shw@ptions to purchase
39,087 shares of the Company’s common stock akertise price of $1.23 per share. On July 30, 2@ parties held a
mediation which resulted in a settlement agreeraectrding to which the Company paid $7,000 pluseadded taxes to the
plaintiff and the plaintiff waived all of his claisrito any options and agreed to the irrevocableidgahof the above mention
claim. On August 5, 2012, the court approved thteseent and dismissed the claim.

In December 2011, a statement of claim againsCibmapany was submitted by an alleged finder of thengany, regardir
584,357 options to purchase the Compamghares. The Company filed its defense in thie @as March 11, 2012. T
Company and the plaintiff agreed to refer the ¢aseediation. After considering the views of itgd¢ counsel as well as ot
factors, the Company’s managementf the opinion that a loss to the Company ishegiprobable nor in an amount or ra
of loss that is estimable.

In July 2012, a purported assignee of options ispieMD Ltd. submitted a statement of claim agaitet Compan
InspireMD Ltd., and the Compars//CEO and former President for a declaratory arffdreement order that it is entitled
options to purchase 334,546 shares of the Compammyyhmon stock at an exercise price of $0.19 paresti\fter considerir
the views of its legal counsel as well as othetdie; the Compang’ management is of the opinion that a loss to thagan,
is neither expected nor in an amount or rangess that is estimable.

c. Liens and pledges

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had fixets laggregating $37,000 to bank Mizrahi and bankrién connection
with the Company’s credit cards.

The Company’s obligations under the 2012 Convertibdbentures are secured by a first priority péefibsecurity interest in
all of the assets and properties of the CompanylresmreMD Ltd., including the stock of InspireMOd. and InspireMD
GmbH.
NOTE 10 - ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURE:
The Company operates in one reportable segment.

Disaggregated financial data is provided belowadisws:

(1) Revenues by geographic area and

10




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
(2) Revenues from principal customers.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas bas#tedocation of the customers. The following istenmary of revenues
geographic areas:

3 months endec

September 30
2012 2011

($ in thousands)
Spain $ 101 $ 238
Israel 75 124
South Africa 57 11¢
Argentina 6 234
Brazil 5 204
Other 26E 1,07¢
$ 50¢ $ 1,98¢

The following is a summary of revenues by principagtomers:

3 months endec

September 30,
2012 2011
Customer A 2C% 12%
Customer B 15% 6%
Customer C 11% 6%
Customer D 1% 12%
Customer E 1% 10%

All tangible lon¢-lived assets are located in Isre
NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

During October 2012, the Company issued a total 886,906 shares of its common stock in conneetitimthe exercise of
1,836,906 options and warrants. The Company redeiggregate cash proceeds equal to approximatély,@&0 in connection
with such exercises.

11




Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should B&ad in conjunction with tt
accompanying condensed consolidated financial stai#s and related notes included elsewhere inQhirterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencehis Form 10-Q to the “Company,” “InspireMD,” “wg “our” and “us” refer tc
InspireMD, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and itsbsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “fordemoking statementsyvhich include information relating to future everftsture

financial performance, strategies, expectationsypmiitive environment and regulation. Words sucHray,” “should,” “could,” “would,”

“predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “expects,” “ditipates,” “future,” “intends,” “plans,” “believe’s “estimates,”and similar expressions,

well as statements in future tense, identify fovimoking statements. Forwatdeking statements should not be read as a guaraftiiture
performance or results and will probably not beusate indications of when such performance or teswill be achieved. Forwaridoking
statements are based on information we have wlose thtatements are made or our managemgatd faith belief as of that time with res)
to future events, and are subject to risks andntgioties that could cause actual performance sulteto differ materially from those expres
in or suggested by the forward-looking statemdmgortant factors that could cause such differemesde, but are not limited to:

« our history of recurring losses and negative céslvs from operating activities, significant futucemmitments and the uncertai
regarding the adequacy of our liquidity to pursue @mplete business objectivi

« our ability to complete clinical trials as anticipd and obtain and maintain regulatory approval®fw products;
« our ability to adequately protect our intellectpabperty;

« disputes over ownership of intellectual property;

« accusations of infringement or violation of thirarty intellectual property;

» our dependence on a single manufacturing facilit§t aur ability to comply with stringent manufacthgi quality standards and
increase production as necess:i

« the risk that the data collected from our curremd @lanned clinical trials may not be sufficientdemonstrate that the MGuarc
technology is an attractive alternative to othecpdures and produc

« intense competition in our industry, with compastdaving substantially greater financial, techgalal, research and developm:
regulatory and clinical, manufacturing, marketimgl gales, distribution and personnel resourcesuleado;

« entry of new competitors and products and potetdiztinological obsolescence of our products;
« loss of a key customer or supplier;

« technical problems with our research and produutisptential product liability claims;

« adverse economic conditions;

« adverse federal, state and local government ragajah the United States, Europe or Israel;

- price increases for supplies and components;

« inability to carry out research, development anchicercialization plans; and

12




« loss or retirement of key executives and reseasentsts.

For a discussion of these and other risks thateétaour business and investing in shares of ommaon stock, you should careft
review the risks and uncertainties described utifteheading “Part Il — Item 1A. Risk Factoesid elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on F
10-Q and in our Transition Report on Form 10-KT ttee six month period ended June 30, 2012 (therlSit@n Report”),and those describ
from time to time in our future reports filed withe Securities and Exchange Commission. The forlaoking statements contained in 1
Quarterly Report on Form 1Q-are expressly qualified in their entirety by thutionary statement. We do not undertake anygatitin tc
publicly update any forwartboking statement to reflect events or circumstaraféer the date on which any such statement iroatb reflec
the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Overview

We are a medical device company focusing on theldpment and commercialization of our proprietamns platform technolog
MGuard. MGuard provides embolic protection in stemtprocedures by placing a micron mesh sleeve avstent. Our initial products
marketed for use mainly in patients with acute narg syndromes, notably acute myocardial infarcfioeart attack) and saphenous vein
coronary interventions (bypass surgery).

Recent Developments

During the past several months, we have been reaigour distributor relationships in anticipatiof results from our MGuard f
Acute ST Elevation Reperfusion Trial (MASTER Trialyhich were published on October 24, 2012. The MER trial is the first majc
randomized study comparing the MGuard Coronaryotoroercially-approved bare metal or dreigting stents in primary angioplasty for
treatment of acute STEMI, the most severe form edrhattack. As such, we are in the process of inppg new distributors in certe
territories, and believe that new incentives anglabter responsibilities have strengthened arrangesnwveith our best and most experien
country and regional partners. Third party distrilss are also being replaced by direct sales clisuimé&ey European countries where end
average selling prices and the lack of strong ibistors are limiting factors. These activities cdioour sales for the three months er
September 30, 2012 to decrease to approximatebyriillion, as compared to $2.0 million during theere period in 2011.

On April 5, 2012, we issued senior secured condlertilebentures due April 5, 2014 in the originajregate principal amount
$11,702,128 and fivgear warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,343H&%s of our common stock at an exercise priGl &0 per share
exchange for aggregate gross proceeds of $11.@milvith corresponding net proceeds of approxitgya$9.9 million. The convertib
debentures were issued with a 6% original issudrgmunt, bear interest at an annual rate of 8%aaedonvertible at any time into share
common stock at an initial conversion price of $lger share. Upon conversion of the convertibleedalres, investors will receive
conversion premium equal to 8%, per annum, withmét lof 12% for the term of the convertible debaety of the principal amount be
converted. In addition, the investors may requsdairedeem the convertible debentures at any ditee October 5, 2013 (18 months after
date of issuance) for 112% of the then outstangimgcipal amount, plus all accrued interest, andmagy prepay the convertible debent
after six months for 112% of the then outstandimggipal amount, plus all accrued interest. In aeetion with this financing, we pe
placement agent fees of $848,750 and issued platergents warrants to purchase 312,310 shareswohoa stock, with terms identical to
warrants issued to the investors.

On October 31, 2011, our stockholders authorizedoard of directors to amend our amended andtesstzertificate of incorporatic
to effect a reverse stock split of our common statck ratio of one-for-two to one-for-four, at atye prior to our 2012 annual stockholders
meeting, the exact ratio of the reverse stock gplite determined by the board. As of the datdisfQuarterly Report, we have not effectec
reverse stock split and, as such, the informatidth wespect to our common stock in this QuarterBp®t and the accompanying finan
statements and related notes does not give effeahy reverse stock split. In addition, pursuanthi securities purchase agreement
which the convertible debentures that we issuedmril 5, 2012 were sold, until April 5, 2013, weeanot permitted to effectuate any rev:
stock splits without the prior written consent bétholders of at least 60% of the outstanding jpalcamount of the convertible debentt
other than for purposes of qualifying for initigdting on a national securities exchange or meetiegcontinued listing requirements of s
exchange.

Critical Accounting Policies

A critical accounting policy is one that is bothgaortant to the portrayal of our financial conditiand results of operation and requ
managemeng most difficult, subjective or complex judgmerdfien as a result of the need to make estimatest dhe effect of matters that
inherently uncertain. Our critical accounting piE& are more fully described in Note 2 of the Ndtethe Consolidated Financial Statem
included in our Transition Report and are disclogedhe Managemert’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord dResults ¢
Operations section of our Transition Report. THeree not been any material changes to such cri@aunting policies since June 30, 2012.
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The currency of the primary economic environmentwinich our operations are conducted is the U.Sladdql'$” or “dollar”).
Accordingly, the functional currency of us and af subsidiaries is the dollar.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2012 Comparelké® Months Ended September 30, 2011

Revenues For the three months ended September 30, 201&, mevenue decreased approximately $1.5 million,74.4%, t
approximately $0.5 million from approximately $2rfillion during the same period in 2011. The follogiis an explanation of t
approximately $1.5 million decrease in revenue brodown by its main two components, a decreasedssgevenues of approximately ¢
million, partially offset by a net increase in deésl revenues of approximately $0.1 million.

For the three months ended September 30, 2012 groiss revenue decreased by approximately $1l&mibr approximately 78.4¢
to approximately $0.4 million from approximately .@2million during the same period in 2011. This ®ese in total gross revenue °
predominately sales volume based, with decreaded galume accounting for approximately $1.5 milli@r approximately 76.5%, and pr
decreases to our repeat distributors accountinthtBremaining approximately $0.1 million, or approately 1.9%. The $1.5 million decre:
was attributable primarily to activities in antiaiipn of the release of our MASTER trail resultstheé Transcatheter Cardiovasc
Therapeutics (TCT) meeting in Miami Florida, whigicluded evaluating and appointing new distributorssome territories, as well
replacing third party distributors with direct sslehannels in key European countries where end aws¥age selling prices and the lacl
strong distributors are limiting current sales. IBmo out by individual markets, the decrease in gn@venue was mainly attributable t
decrease of approximately $0.2 million in grosserexe from our distributor in Argentina, a decreaSapproximately $0.2 million in gro
revenue from our distributor in Brazil, a decreaf@approximately $0.2 million in gross revenue froor distributor in Mexico, a decrease
approximately $0.1 million in gross revenue front distributor in Italy, a decrease of approximat®@:1 million in gross revenue from «
distributor in Spain, a decrease of approximat@lyl $nillion in gross revenue from our distributorBelarus, a decrease of approximately
million in gross revenue from our distributor in $3ia, a decrease of approximately $0.1 millionrmsg revenue from our distributor in Frai
a decrease of approximately $0.1 million in grassenue from our distributor in Ireland and a neatrdase of approximately $0.4 million fr
our other distributors.

Net deferred revenue recognized during the thremtimsoended September 30, 2012 increased to apm®iym$0.1 millior
recognized in revenue from approximately $4,00Gdefl during the same period in 2011. This increeae sales volume based, parti
offset by approximately $10,000 attributable tapridecreases. The deferred revenue recognizededewlad! during both periods related to
provision for returns, which is calculated basedan history of returns, and recognized one ye@rlahe reason for the increase in the 1
months ended September 30, 2012, compared to e geriod in 2011, is the decrease in sales betyeods, as well as our reassessme
the provision for returns in the three months enflegtember 30, 2012. Our reassessment of the fmov returns of approximately $55,(
was based on a comparison of our history of retagasnst the percentage of sales we had been negondthe provision. For the three mor
ended September 30, 2012, higher sales in the thghs ended September 30, 2011, as well as #ssessed provision, caused
recognition of past provision for returns to behH@gthan the provision recorded relating to saladerduring the three months ended Septe
30, 2012. For the three months ended Septembe2(d, higher sales caused the provision recordeting to sales made during the tf
months ended September 30, 2011 to be higher tlgaretognition of past provision for returns.

Gross Profit. For the three months ended September 30, 20b8s gurofit (revenue less cost of revenues) deale@6e5%, @
approximately $0.9 million, to approximately $0.3llimn from approximately $1.2 million during theusie period in 2011. The key drivel
the decrease in gross profit was our decreasetinemenues of approximately $1.5 million, as ddsdi above. For the three months ei
September 30, 2012, our average selling pricetpet secognized in revenue decreased to $569, andeognized the sale of 826 stents, |
an average price of $624 per stent and 3,186 stectgnized in revenue for the same period in 26t the three months ended Septembe
2012, our cost of goods sold per stent was $27%teet recognized in revenue, as compared to $86&tpnt recognized in revenue during
same period in 2011. Gross margin decreased fraif?bt the three months ended September 30, 2052.8%6 in the three months en
September 30, 2012.
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Research and Development Expeng®r the three months ended September 30, 204@anmeh and development expense incre
72.9%, or approximately $0.4 million, to approxielgt$0.9 million from approximately $0.5 million dog the same period in 2011. 7
increase in cost resulted primarily from highenidal trial expenses of approximately $0.3 milliattributable mainly to the MASTER Tr
(approximately $0.2 million), and the MGuard Cadotlinical trial (approximately $0.1 million). Inddition to the increase in clinical tr
expenses, there was an increase of approximatelyrfiillion in salaries and shabased compensation due to our hiring of additiafialcal
trial personnel. Research and development expenseparcentage of revenue increased to 185.9%éothtee months ended Septembe
2012 from 27.5% in the same period in 2011.

Selling and Marketing Expensd-or the three months ended September 30, 20lidgsaend marketing expense increased 33.1¢
approximately $0.1 million, to approximately $0.4llion, from approximately $0.3 million during theame period in 2011. The increas
selling and marketing expense resulted primariyrfrapproximately $60,000 of additional salaries apdroximately $50,000 of additio
travel expenses as we expanded our sales activitiddwide. Selling and marketing expense as agregage of revenue increased to 79.0
2012 from 15.2% in 2011.

General and Administrative Expens€or the three months ended September 30, 20bh2rgleand administrative expense decre
11.0%, or approximately $0.3 million, to approxielgt$2.2 million from approximately $2.5 million dog the same period in 2011. T
decrease resulted primarily from a decrease ineshased compensation of $0.8 million (which predately pertained to directors’
compensation), partially offset by an increase pgraximately $0.2 million in bad debt expense, meréase of approximately $0.1 millior
audit fees and an increase of approximately $0l2omiin miscellaneous expenses. General and adinative expense as a percentac
revenue increased to 434.6% in 2012 from 125.22911.

Financial ExpensesFor the three months ended September 30, 20ihdial expense increased to approximately $4.Romifrom
approximately $0.1 million during the same periad2011. The increase in expense resulted primédiy;n approximately $3.2 million |
financial expense pertaining to the revaluatiomafrants due to our stock price increasing to $2r2Beptember 30, 2012, from $1.06 on .
30, 2012, and approximately $1.0 million of amatian expense pertaining to the convertible delrestand their related issuance costs fc
three months ended September 30, 2012. Finangiahse as a percentage of revenue increased frémis.2011, to 828.7% in 2012.

Tax ExpensesTax expense remained relatively flat at $7,00Qlie three months ended September 30, 2012, agarethto $25,0(
during the same period in 2011.

Net Loss Our net loss increased by approximately $5.2ianijlor 230.0%, to $7.5 million for the three mon#nded September
2012 from $2.3 million during the same period inL20The increase in net loss resulted primarilynfran increase in financial expense
approximately $4.1 million (see above for explama}j a decrease of approximately $0.9 million iasgrprofit (see above for explanation)
an increase of approximately $0.3 million in opErgexpenses (see above for explanation).

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Three Months Ended September 30, 2012 Comparelké® Months Ended September 30, 2011

We have had recurring losses and negative casls fimmn operating activities and have significartifea commitments. For the three
months ended September 30, 2012, we had lossepabamately $7.5 million and negative cash flonefi operating activities of
approximately $2.4 million. Additionally, as of Sember 30, 2012, we had a capital deficiency of63J80. Our management believes that its
working capital as of September 30, 2012 of appnately $8.6 million should enable us to continueding the negative cash flows from
operating activities until October 2013, when oonwertible debentures are subject to a non-contingelemption option that could require us
to make a payment of approximately $13.3 milliorcliding accrued interest. Since we expect to naetincurring negative cash flows from
operations and in light of the potential cash regment in connection with our convertible debergutkere is substantial doubt about our
ability to continue operating as a going concern.

We will need to raise further capital at some fatpoint in time, through the sale of additionaliggsecurities or debt. Our future
capital requirements and the adequacy of our édeifainds will depend on many factors, including ahility to successfully commercialize
our MGuard products, our development of future pitsl and competing technological and market devedots. However, we may be unable
to raise sufficient additional capital when we riegut or upon terms favorable to us. In addititire terms of any securities we issue in future
financings may be more favorable to new investasraay include preferences, superior voting rigimd the issuance of warrants or other
derivative securities, which may have a furtheutilie effect on the holders of any of our secusitigen outstanding. If we are unable to obtain
adequate funds on reasonable terms, we will needrtail operations significantly, including podgilpostponing or halting our U.S. Food and
Drug Administration clinical trials or entering mfinancing agreements with unattractive terms.
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General. At September 30, 2012, we had cash and cashagaots of approximately $8.3 million, as compam&10.3 million as ¢
June 30, 2012. The decrease is attributable priyn@riour net loss, excluding naash financial expenses. We have historically nuetcas!
needs through a combination of issuance of neweshdrorrowing activities and sales. Our cash requénts are generally for prod
development, clinical trials, marketing and saletb/éties, finance and administrative cost, capégbenditures and general working capital.

Cash used in our operating activities was approtéimab2.4 million for the three months ended SejienB0, 2012 and $2.1 milli
for the same period in 2011. The principal reafonghe usage of cash in our operating activit@sthe three months ended Septembe
2012 include a net loss of approximately $7.5 wniljioffset by approximately $4.0 million in n@ash financial expenses, approximately
million in non-cash share-based compensation afeteease in working capital of approximately $0illion.

Cash used in our investing activities was approsétyga$57,000 during the three months ended Septe®®e2012, compared
approximately $264,000 of cash generated by invesictivities during the same period in 2011. Thagipal reason for the decrease in ¢
flow from investing activities during 2012 was tharchase of approximately $35,000 of new manufagjuequipment and the funding
employee retirement funds of approximately $22,000.

Cash generated by financing activities was appratety $0.4 million for the three months ended Seyker 30, 2012, compared
$1.4 million generated from financing activities the same period in 2011. The principal sourceash from financing activities during
three months ended September 30, 2012 was fundévedcfor the exercise of options and warrantshism amount of approximately $
million. In contrast, during the three months en&sptember 30, 2011, we received approximately Bill&n from the exercise of optior
partially offset by a repayment of a long term l@drapproximately $0.1 million.

As of September 30, 2012, our current assets erdeedirent liabilities by a multiple of 3.6. Curtaassets decreased approxime
$2.3 million during the three month period, mainlye to cash used in operations, and current lisdsilidecreased by approximately ¢
million during the same period. As a result, ourkiog capital surplus decreased by approximatelyt $2illion to approximately $8.6 millic
during the three months ended September 30, 2012.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

None
Factors That May Affect Future Operations

We believe that our future operating results wilhtinue to be subject to quarterly variations bagpdn a wide variety of facto
including the cyclical nature of the ordering patteof our distributors, timing of regulatory appats, the implementation of various phase
our clinical trials and manufacturing efficiencigse to the learning curve of utilizing new materiahd equipment. Our operating results ¢
also be impacted by a weakening of the Euro arahgthening of the New Israeli Shekel, or NIS, baglainst the U.S. dollar. Lastly, ot
economic conditions we cannot foresee may affestotner demand, such as individual country reimbmesg policies pertaining to ¢
products.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
During the three months ended September 30, 2B&8 tvere no material changes to our contractajailbns and commitments.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk related to fluctuatio interest rates and in foreign currency exgbaates.
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Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk relates primarily torsterm investments, including funds classified ahaiivalents. As of Septemt
30, 2012, all excess funds were invested in tinposdis and other highly liquid investments, therefour interest rate exposure is not
considered to be material.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Exposure

Our foreign currency exchange rate exposure coasinol evolve as we grow internationally. Our expesa foreign currency
transaction gains and losses is the result oficemt&enues and expenses being denominated inncigseother than the U.S. dollar, primarily
the Euro and the NIS. We do not currently engadeeifging or similar transactions to reduce thesesriFluctuations in currency exchange
rates could impact our results of operations, for@rposition, and cash flows.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Management’s Conclusions Regarding Effectiveness Biisclosure Controls and Procedures

As of September 30, 2012, we conducted an evahlyaiimder the supervision and participation of managnt including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, diet effectiveness of our disclosure controls andguiares (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and
Rule 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act &41%s amended). There are inherent limitationkeaeffectiveness of any system of
disclosure controls and procedures. Accordinglgnesffective disclosure controls and proceduresocéynprovide reasonable assurance of
achieving their control objectives.

Based upon this evaluation, our chief executiveceffand chief financial officer concluded that dlisclosure controls and procedures
are effective at the reasonable assurance levafl Ssptember 30, 2012.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the quarter ended Sepn30, 2012 that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved in litigatitirat arises through the normal course of busin@ssof the date of this filing, we
are not a party to any material litigation nor aseaware of any such threatened or pending libgagéxcept for the matters described below.

On November 2, 2010, Eric Ben Mayor, a former seaioployee of InspireMD Ltd., filed suit in Regidriabor Court in Tel Aviv,
claiming illegal termination of employment and wars amounts in connection with his termination|udig allegations that he is owed sal:
payments to pension fund, vacation pay, sick dsgsgerance pay, commission for revenues and otpestgf funds. In total, Mr. Ben Mayor
sought $428,000, additional compensation for haldiack wages, and options to purchase 2,029,028ssb&iour common stock at an exer:
price of $0.001 per share. InspireMD Ltd. filedatice in Regional Labor Court indicating that theetges rejected a court proposal for
mediation and a second preliminary hearing was deldlovember 3, 2011. In June 2012, InspireMD k¢dched a settlement agreement with
Mr. Ben Mayor, pursuant to which InspireMD Ltd. gair. Ben Mayor $88,000 in exchange for Mr. Ben Magigning a mutual petition
requesting the dismissal of his suit. The mutuétipa dismissing Mr. Ben Mayor’s suit against lirggMD Ltd. was granted by the Regional
Labor Court on July 6, 2012.

Other than as set forth above, there are no mbapedaeeedings in which any of our directors, offger affiliates or any registered or
beneficial shareholder of more than 5% of our comistock is an adverse party or has a materialestedverse to our interest.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are numerous and varied risks, known andawknthat may prevent us from achieving our goétsi should carefully consider
the risks described below and the other informaitiefuded in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q @&ndur Transition Report on Form 10-
K/T for the six month period ended June 30, 204&luiding the consolidated financial statementsratated notes. If any of the following
risks, or any other risks not described below, @bfloccur, it is likely that our business, finaalctondition, and/or operating results could be
materially adversely affected. In such case, thditig price and market value of our common stoekdcdecline and you may lose part or al
your investment in our common stock. The risks amcertainties described below include forv-looking statements and our actual results
may differ from those discussed in these forwamkiog statements.

Risks Related to Our Business

The report of our independent auditors contains arplanatory paragraph as to our ability to continwes a going concern, which could
prevent us from obtaining new financing on reasoralierms or at all

Because we have had recurring losses and negatteflows from operating activities and have sigaift future commitments,
substantial doubt exists regarding our abilitygmain in operation at the same level we are cuyreetforming. Further, the report of
Kesselman & Kesselman C.P.A.s (Isr.), our indepehdagistered public accounting firm, with respecour financial statements at June 30,
2012, December 31, 2011 and 2010, and for the sixtimperiod ended June 30, 2012, and the yearsiddglsember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
contains an explanatory paragraph as to our paiénébility to continue as a going concern. Adatitlly, this may adversely affect our ability
to obtain new financing on reasonable terms ollat a

We have a history of net losses and may experigntére losses.

To date, we have experienced net losses. A sulatpottion of the expenses associated with ourufeanturing facilities are fixed in
nature (i.e., depreciation) and will reduce ourrafieg margin until such time, if ever, as we d&eao increase utilization of our capacity
through increased sales of our products. The diri@ls necessary to support our anticipated gnomill be expensive and lengthy. In
addition, our strategic plan will require a sigoéit investment in clinical trials, product devetegnt and sales and marketing programs, whic
may not result in the accelerated revenue grovahwhe anticipate. Furthermore, we have signifiéature commitments with respect to our
convertible debentures. Since we expect to confimugring negative cash flows from operations anliight of the potential cash expenditu
that may be required to satisfy our convertibleesdbres, there can be no assurance that we willgareerate sufficient revenues to become
profitable.

We expect to derive our revenue from sales of oustvrd stent products and other products we may digwelf we fail to generate revenue
from this source, our results of operations and thielue of our business would be materially and ackedy affected

We expect our revenue to be generated from salegrdfiGuard stent products and other products we deaelop. Future sales of
these products, if any, will be subject to the igtcef regulatory approvals and commercial and readncertainties that may be outside our
control. If we fail to generate such revenues,restilts of operations and the value of our busiaessssecurities would be materially and
adversely affected.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain intellectl@roperty protection covering our products, othersay be able to make, use or sell ¢
products, which would adversely affect our reven

Our ability to protect our products from unauthedr infringing use by third parties depends saigtlly on our ability to obtain ai
maintain valid and enforceable patents. Similahg, ability to protect our trademark rights migktimportant to prevent third party
counterfeiters from selling poor quality goods gsaur designated trademarks/trade names. Due teiegdegal standards relating to the
patentability, validity and enforceability of patertovering medical devices and pharmaceuticalntions and the scope of claims made unde
these patents, our ability to enforce patents éertain and involves complex legal and factual jaes. Accordingly, rights under any of our
pending patent applications and patents may nafigieaus with commercially meaningful protection @ products or may not afford a
commercial advantage against our competitors ar toenpetitive products or processes. In additatents may not be issued from any
pending or future patent applications owned byiaarised to us, and moreover, patents that maysbedsto us now or in the future may not be
valid or enforceable. Further, even if valid andoeceable, our patents may not be sufficiently drimprevent others from marketing products
like ours, despite our patent rights.
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The validity of our patent claims depends, in pantwhether prior art references exist that desasibrender obvious our inventions
of the filing date of our patent applications. Waymot have identified all prior art, such as WaBd foreign patents or published applicatior
published scientific literature, that could advérsdfect the patentability of our pending patepplcations. For example, some material
references may be in a foreign language and malgenahcovered during examination of our patentiepfbns. Additionally, patent
applications in the United States are maintainecbinfidence for up to 18 months after their fililg.some cases, however, patent application:
remain confidential in the U.S. Patent and Tradén@fice for the entire time prior to issuance dd.8. patent. Patent applications filed in
countries outside the United States are not tylyigalblished until at least 18 months from theiisfifiling date. Similarly, publication of
discoveries in the scientific or patent literatofeen lags behind actual discoveries. Thereforecaraot be certain that we were the first to
invent, or the first to file patent applicationsateng to, our stent technologies. In the event ¢hthird party has also filed a U.S. patent
application covering our stents or a similar inv@mtwe may have to participate in an adversarat@eding, known as an interference,
declared by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Offia@etermine priority of invention in the United st |t is possible that we may be
unsuccessful in the interference, resulting ins lof some portion or all of our position in theitdd States. The laws of some foreign
jurisdictions do not protect intellectual properights to the same degree as in the United Statesmany companies have encounte
significant difficulties in protecting, enforcingnd defending such rights in certain foreign judgdns. If we encounter such difficulties or are
otherwise precluded from effectively protecting mitellectual property rights in any foreign juristions, our business prospects could be
substantially harmed.

We may initiate litigation to enforce our patemghis on any patents issued on pending patent afiplis, which may prompt
adversaries in such litigation to challenge thédityl, scope, ownership, or enforceability of oatents. Third parties can sometimes bring
challenges against a patent holder to resolve tksaes, as well. If a court decides that any gathnts are not valid, not enforceable, not
wholly owned by us, or are of a limited scope, weymot have the right to stop others from usingiouentions. Also, even if our patent rights
are determined by a court to be valid and enforeg#iftey may not be sufficiently broad to prevethteos from marketing products similar to
ours or designing around our patents, despite atemp rights, nor do they provide us with freedonoperate unimpeded by the patent and
other intellectual property rights of others thayntover our products.

We also rely on trade secret protection to pradectinterests in proprietary know-how and for pissss for which patents are difficult
to obtain or enforce. We may not be able to pratecttrade secrets adequately. In addition, we @rlpon-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with employees, consultants and otligepéo protect, in part, trade secrets and gtheprietary technology. These agreements
may be breached and we may not have adequate esfediany breach. Moreover, others may indepehddavelop equivalent proprietary
information, and third parties may otherwise gainess to our trade secrets and proprietary knowlefigy disclosure of confidential data into
the public domain or to third parties could allommpetitors to learn our trade secrets and usenfbemiation in competition against us.

We have limited manufacturing capabilities and mafaeturing personnel, and if our manufacturing fadiies are unable to provide an
adequate supply of products, our growth could bmited and our business could be harmed.

We currently manufacture our MGuard stent at oailifees in Tel Aviv, Israel, and we have contratt@ith QualiMed Innovative
Medizinprodukte GmbH, a German manufacturer, tessBsproduction. If there were a disruption ta existing manufacturing facility, we
would have no other means of manufacturing our M@sgent until we were able to restore the manufagy capability at our facility or
develop alternative manufacturing facilities. If were unable to produce sufficient quantities af @Guard stent for use in our current and
planned clinical trials, or if our manufacturingopess yields substandard stents, our developmédrtanmercialization efforts would be
delayed.

We currently have limited resources, facilities axgerience to commercially manufacture our prodacdidates. In order to produce
our MGuard stent in the quantities that we antigpaill be required to meet anticipated market dedhave will need to increase, or “scale up,
the production process by a significant factor diercurrent level of production. There are tecanihallenges to scaling-up manufacturing
capacity, and developing commercial-scale manufengdacilities will require the investment of suéstial funds and hiring and retaining
additional management and technical personnel walve the necessary manufacturing experience. Wenwiaguccessfully complete any
required scalewp in a timely manner or at all. If unable to dowe may not be able to produce our MGuard stentfficient quantities to me
the requirements for the launch of the producbaneet future demand, if at all. If we develop abthin regulatory approval for our MGuard
stent and are unable to manufacture a sufficigmplgwof our MGuard stent, our revenues, businessfimancial prospects would be adversely
affected and we may suffer reputational harm, wiemhid further adversely affect our revenues, essrand financial prospects. In addition, i
the scaled-up production process is not efficiergroduces stents that do not meet quality andr cttamdards, our future gross margins may
decline. Also, our current and planned personiystems, procedures and controls may not be adetpuatgport our anticipated growth. If we
are unable to manage our growth effectively, owiress could be harmed.
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Additionally, any damage to or destruction of oet Aviv facilities or its equipment, prolonged pawmitage or contamination at our
facility would significantly impair our ability tproduce MGuard stents.

Finally, the production of our MGuard stent mustwrcin a highly controlled, clean environment tanimiize particles and other yield
and quality-limiting contaminants. In spite of sfgent quality controls, weaknesses in process abootmminute impurities in materials may
cause a substantial percentage of defective preduet lot. If we are unable to maintain stringgumality controls, or if contamination problems
arise, our clinical development and commercial@atfforts could be delayed, which would harm ausibess and results of operations.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration may not app® our investigational device exemption applicatifor a pivotal trial of our MGuard
Coronary with bio-stable mesh, which would preverst from conducting our clinical trials in the Unité States, and even if the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration does grant such approvabljroclinical trials may be more costly and burdenserthan we currently anticipate,
which would limit or delay our ability to completdinical trials and ultimately market our MGuard Cmnary with bio-stable mesh in the
United States.

In connection with our efforts to seek approvabof MGuard Coronary with bio-stable mesh by the.lF&d and Drug
Administration, we filed an investigational devieeemption application with the U.S. Food and Drudynistration during the summer of
2012 to conduct a pivotal trial. On August 29, 20h2 U.S. Food and Drug Administration issued lettar disapproving our investigational
device exemption application due to insufficientad@ support the initiation of a human clinicaldt. More specifically, the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration cited numerous deficiencie®iur application which may require, amongst othergs, new and/or repeated testing in
order to resolve. There can be no assurance thatilee able to resolve these deficiencies andiseapproval of our investigational device
exemption application from the U.S. Food and Drutpnistration. If the U.S. Food and Drug Adminisima does not approve our
investigational device exemption application, weulddbe unable to conduct a pivotal trial of our MBdi Coronary with bio-stable mesh,
thereby preventing us from marketing MGuard Corgeith bio-stable mesh in the United States. Nahdp@ble to market MGuard Coronary
with bio-stable mesh in the United States wouldehan adverse effect on our business. Moreover, iftlea U.S. Food and Drug
Administration approves an investigational devigeraption application to conduct a pivotal triale ttlinical study we conduct may have
unanticipated complications and delays, may be roostly than we currently anticipate, and/or maltéaachieve the primary or secondary
endpoints. The U.S. Food and Drug Administratioly mpprove our investigational device exemption iaibn with conditions relating to t
scope or design of our clinical trials for which have not planned. These conditions may requite usllect additional data, enroll more
patients, spend more time and expend more resotlraasve currently anticipate, and these conditiroag make a clinical trial in the United
States more costly and time consuming than we itlyrplan. Any unanticipated costs and length d Ltlinical trials, along with our failure
to achieve primary or secondary endpoints wouldydeaf not prevent, our ability to market our MGdatoronary with bio-stable mesh in the
United States, which would harm our business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a praarket approval application will be lengthy and expsive and will require the enrollment of a lar
number of patients, and suitable patients may b#idult to identify and recruit. Any such delay diilure of clinical trials could prevent us
from commercializing our stent products, which walinaterially and adversely affect our results oferptions and the value of oL
business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a pre-markgtraval application to the U.S. Food and Drug Adstmation for our MGuard stent
will be expensive and will require the enrolimehtdarge number of patients, and suitable patiaretg be difficult to identify and recruit,
which may cause a delay in the development and @naiatization of our product candidates. Clinig@ls supporting a pre-market approval
applications for the Cypher stent developed by dohr& Johnson and the Taxus Express2 stent devklppBoston Scientific Corporation,
which were approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adstriztion and are currently marketed, involved gratipopulations of approximately
1,000 and 1,300, respectively, and a 12-monthviollp period. In some trials, a greater number ¢iepés and a longer follow up period may
be required. The U.S. Food and Drug Administratizay require us to submit data on a greater numhgaitents or for a longer follow-up
period than those for pre-market approval applicetifor the Cypher stent and the Taxus Express fatient enrollment in clinical trials and
the ability to successfully complete patient folloyw depends on many factors, including the sizéefatient population, the nature of the
protocol, the proximity of patients to clinicalest the eligibility criteria for the clinical tri@nd patient compliance. For example, patients may
be discouraged from enrolling in our clinical tsidf the trial protocol requires them to undergte@sive post-treatment procedures or follogv-
to assess the safety and efficacy of our prodoctiiey may be persuaded to participate in conteammmus clinical trials of competitive
products. In addition, patients participating i olinical trials may die before completion of thial or suffer adverse medical events unrelate:
to or related to our products. Delays in patiembiment or failure of patients to continue to pgigate in a clinical trial may cause an increase
in costs and delays or result in the failure ofc¢heical trial.
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In addition, the length of time required to comelelinical trials for pharmaceutical and medicalide products varies substantially
according to the degree of regulation and the tgpmplexity, novelty and intended use of a prodact can continue for several years and
millions of dollars. The commencement and compietibclinical trials for our products under devaiognt may be delayed by many factors,
including governmental or regulatory delays andngfes in regulatory requirements, policy and guigsdior our inability or the inability of al
potential licensee to manufacture or obtain froirdtparties materials sufficient for use in prewal studies and clinical trials.

Physicians may not widely adopt the MGuard steniess they determine, based on experience, -term clinical data and published peer
reviewed journal articles, that the use of the MGulestent provides a safe and effective alternativenther existing treatments for coronary
artery disease.

We believe that physicians will not widely adope tMGuard stent unless they determine, based orrierpe, long-term clinical data
and published peer reviewed journal articles, thatuse of our MGuard stent provides a safe ard®fe alternative to other existing
treatments for coronary artery disease, includimgigary artery bypass grafting balloon angioplalstye-metal stents and other drug-eluting
stents, provided by Johnson & Johnson, Boston 8fiteGorporation, Medtronic Inc., Abbott Laborates and others.

We cannot provide any assurance that the datactediérom our current and planned clinical triaif e sufficient to demonstrate
that the MGuard stents are an attractive alteraatvother procedures. If we fail to demonstrafetgand efficacy that is at least comparabl
other drug-eluting stents or bare-metal stentstihgé received regulatory approval and that aréadla on the market, our ability to
successfully market the MGuard stent will be siigaiftly limited. Even if the data collected froningtal studies or clinical experience indicate
positive results, each physician’s actual expegeasith our MGuard stent will vary. Clinical triat®nducted with the MGuard Coronary stent
have involved procedures performed by physicians are technically proficient and are high-volumenstusers. Consequently, both short-
term and long-term results reported in these dirtigals may be significantly more favorable thgpical results of practicing physicians,
which could negatively affect rates of adoptionswof products. We also believe that published peeiewed journal articles and
recommendations and support by influential physiiegarding our MGuard Coronary stent will be im@at for market acceptance and
adoption, and we cannot assure you that we wiltivecthese recommendations and support, or thaiostiye articles will be published.

In addition, currently, physicians consider drelgting stents to be the industry standard fortineat of coronary artery disease. WI
we believe that the MGuard Coronary stent is a aateeffective alternative, it is not a drug-elgtstent, which may further hinder its support
and adoption by physicians.

Our products are based on a new technology, andhaee only limited experience in regulatory affairathich may affect our ability or the
time required to navigate complex regulatory regaeiments and obtain necessary regulatory approvdlsuch approvals are received at all.
Regulatory delays or denials may increase our cpstaise us to lose revenue and materially and adedr affect our results of operatior
and the value of our business.

Because our products are new and long-term suceeasures have not been completely validated, regylagencies, including the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, may take a digant amount of time in evaluating product appiayeplications. For example, there are
currently several methods of measuring restenosisage do not know which of these metrics, or coration of these metrics, will be
considered appropriate by the U.S. Food and DrugiAigtration for evaluating the clinical efficacy stents. Treatments may exhibit a
favorable measure using one of these metrics anmhf@vorable measure using another metric. Any gham the accepted metrics may result
in reconfiguration of, and delays in, our clinit@éls. Additionally, we have only limited experianin filing and prosecuting the applications
necessary to gain regulatory approvals, and onicell, regulatory and quality assurance personmetarrently composed of only 9 employe
As a result, we may experience delays in conneetitimobtaining regulatory approvals for our protuc
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In addition, the products we and any potentialigzes license, develop, manufacture and marksuaject to complex regulatory
requirements, particularly in the United States,dpe and Asia, which can be costly and time-conagmihere can be no assurance that suct
approvals will be granted on a timely basis, i&ktFurthermore, there can be no assurance ofragrd compliance with all regulatory
requirements necessary for the manufacture, magkatid sale of the products we will offer in eadirket where such products are expectt
be sold, or that products we have commercializdidcantinue to comply with applicable regulatorytgrements. If a government regulatory
agency were to conclude that we were not in compéiavith applicable laws or regulations, the agerayld institute proceedings to detain or
seize our products, issue a recall, impose opgradisirictions, enjoin future violations and assggi$ and criminal penalties against us, our
officers or employees and could recommend criminasecution. Furthermore, regulators may procedshin or request the recall, repair,
replacement or refund of the cost of, any devicaufectured or sold by us. Furthermore, there camdbassurance that all necessary regule
approvals will be obtained for the manufacture, kieing and sale in any market of any new produgetiped or that any potential licensee
will develop using our licensed technology.

Even if our products are approved by regulatory hatities, if we or our suppliers fail to comply vitongoing regulatory requirements, or
we experience unanticipated problems with our pratis these products could be subject to restrictian withdrawal from the market.

Any product for which we obtain marketing approiwathe United States, along with the manufactupnacesses, post-approval
clinical data and promational activities for suglaghuct, will be subject to continual review andipdic inspections by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration and other regulatory bodies. In aitar, we and our suppliers will be required tongdy with the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration’s Quality System Regulation for timanufacture of our MGuard stent, which covers tle¢hmds and documentation of the
design, testing, production, control, quality asse, labeling, packaging, storage and shippirapngfproduct for which we obtain marketing
approval in the United States. The U.S. Food andyxdministration enforces the Quality System Ratgiah through unannounced
inspections. We and our third-party manufactureds suppliers have not yet been inspected by thekbd&d and Drug Administration and will
have to successfully complete such inspectionsreefe receive U.S. regulatory approval for our picid. Failure by us or one of our suppli
to comply with statutes and regulations administdng the U.S. Food and Drug Administration and ptiegulatory bodies, or failure to take
adequate response to any observations, could resathong other things, any of the following ecfement actions:

- warning letters or untitled letters;

- fines and civil penalties;

« unanticipated expenditures;

- delays in approving, or refusal to approve, oudputs;

- withdrawal or suspension of approval by the U.Sd~and Drug Administration or other regulatory hesi
o product recall or seizure;

« orders for physician notification or device repa@iplacement or refund,;
« interruption of production;

« oOperating restrictions;

« injunctions; and

« criminal prosecution.

If any of these actions were to occur, it couldnmaur reputation and could cause our product saldsprofitability to suffer.
Furthermore, key component suppliers may not ctiyré or may not continue to be in compliance veiiplicable regulatory requirements.

Even if regulatory approval of a product is grantethe United States, the approval may be suljelitnitations on the indicated uses
for which the product may be marketed. If the Ur&od and Drug Administration determines that oenpotional materials, training or other
activities constitutes promotion of an unapproves, ut could request that we cease or modify @initng or promotional materials or subject
us to regulatory enforcement actions. It is alsssfile that other federal, state or foreign enforeet authorities might take action if they
consider our training or other promotional matarial constitute promotion of an unapproved useckhould result in significant fines or
penalties under other statutory authorities, sclaas prohibiting false claims for reimbursement.

Moreover, any modification to a device that hagiesd U.S. Food and Drug Administration approvat ttould significantly affect it
safety or effectiveness, or that would constituteagor change in its intended use, design or matwfe, requires a new approval from the (
Food and Drug Administration. If the U.S. Food @rdg Administration disagrees with any determinatiy us that new approval is not
required, we may be required to cease marketirig mrcall the modified product until approval igabed. In addition, we could also be
subject to significant regulatory fines or penaltie
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Additionally, we may be required to conduct cogthst-market testing and surveillance to monitorghfety or efficacy of our
products, and we will be required to report advensents and malfunctions related to our produciseidiscovery of previously unknown
problems with our products, including unanticipadelyerse events or adverse events of unanticigatestity or frequency, manufacturing
problems, or failure to comply with regulatory réggments, such as Quality System Regulation, msyltrén restrictions on such products or
manufacturing processes, withdrawal of the prodirota the market, voluntary or mandatory recalise$, suspension of regulatory approvals
product seizures, injunctions or the impositiortiefl or criminal penalties.

Further, healthcare laws and regulations may chaiggpficantly in the future. Any new healthcarevaor regulations may adversely
affect our business. A review of our business hyrisoor regulatory authorities may result in a deteation that could adversely affect our
operations. In addition, the healthcare regulagmyironment may change in a way that restrictsoparations.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in foreign jisdictions will prevent us from marketing our pragtts in such jurisdictions.

We intend to market our products in internationalkets. In order to market our products in otheeifin jurisdictions, we must obtze
separate regulatory approvals from those obtaiméide United States and Europe. The approval ptoeedaries among countries and can
involve additional testing, and the time requiredbtain approval may differ from that requiredbtitain CE Mark or U.S. Food and Drug
Administration approval. Foreign regulatory appiguacesses may include all of the risks associafétobtaining CE Mark or U.S. Food
and Drug Administration approval in addition to ethisks. We may not obtain foreign regulatory appis on a timely basis, if at all. CE M
does not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiegher countries. We may not be able to fileregulatory approvals and may not receive
necessary approvals to commercialize our produatgitain markets.

We operate in an intensely competitive and rapidhanging business environment, and there is a salnsial risk our products could
become obsolete or uncompetitive.

The medical device market is highly competitive. ¥denpete with many medical service companies irthiéed States and
internationally in connection with our current puatland products under development. We face cotigrefrom numerous pharmaceutical i
biotechnology companies in the therapeutics aemjedl as competition from academic institutionsygrnment agencies and research
institutions. When we commercialize our products,axpect to face intense competition from Cordigp@mation, a subsidiary of Johnson &
Johnson, Boston Scientific Corporation, Guidantdienic, Inc., Abbott Vascular Devices, Terumo atiders. Most of our current and
potential competitors, including but not limitedttmse listed above, have, and will continue toehaubstantially greater financial,
technological, research and development, regulatodyclinical, manufacturing, marketing and salkstribution and personnel resources than
we do. There can be no assurance that we will bafficient resources to successfully commerciadi@geproducts, if and when they are
approved for sale. The worldwide market for stentpcts is characterized by intensive developmtaitte and rapidly advancing technology.
Our future success will depend largely upon oulitglib anticipate and keep pace with those devalepts and advances. Current or future
competitors could develop alternative technologiesducts or materials that are more effectiveieeds use or more economical than what we
or any potential licensee develop. If our techni@egr products become obsolete or uncompetitiveralated product sales and licensing
revenue would decrease. This would have a matdiadrse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

We may become subject to claims by much larger batter capitalized competitors seeking to invaliglaur intellectual property or our
rights thereto.

Based on the prolific litigation that has occuriedhe stent industry and the fact that we may @osempetitive threat to some large
and well-capitalized companies that own or conpadknts relating to stents and their use, manuetod delivery, we believe that it is
possible that one or more third parties will asagratent infringement claim against the manufagtuse or sale of our MGuard stent based or
one or more of these patents. It is also possdiialea lawsuit asserting patent infringement, misaypation of intellectual property, or related
claims may have already been filed against us aflwive are not aware. A number of stent-relatedniatare owned by very large and well-
capitalized companies that are active participantse stent market. As the number of competitorhe stent market grows, the possibility of
patent infringement by us, and/or a patent infringet or misappropriation claim against us, increase
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These companies have maintained their positiohemtarket by, among other things, establishingl@tiial property rights relating
to their products and enforcing these rights agively against their competitors and new entramtis the market. All of the major companies
in the stent and related markets, including Bo&oientific Corporation, Johnson & Johnson and Mwdt, Inc., have been repeatedly invol
in patent litigation relating to stents since asie1997. The stent and related markets have exped rapid technological change and
obsolescence in the past, and our competitors $tameg incentives to stop or delay the introductbnew products and technologies. We ma
pose a competitive threat to many of the compaini#ise stent and related markets. Accordingly, mainyhese companies will have a strong
incentive to take steps, through patent litigatiotherwise, to prevent us from commercializing products.

If we fail to maintain or establish satisfactory agements with suppliers, we may not be able to wbiaaterials that are necessary to deve
our products.

We depend on outside suppliers for certain raw rizd$e These raw materials or components may nedyd be available at our
standards or on acceptable terms, if at all, andag be unable to locate alternative suppliersrodpce necessary materials or components c
our own.

Some of the components of our products are cugr@ntivided by only one vendor, or a single-sourgepsier. We depend on
QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH, which méactures the body of the stent, MeKo Laserstrabtévialbearbeitung for the laser
cutting of the stent, Natec Medical Ltd. for th@pgly of catheters and Biogeneral Inc. for the fibde may have difficulty obtaining similar
components from other suppliers that are acceptalilee U.S. Food and Drug Administration or foreiggulatory authorities if it becomes
necessary.

If we have to switch to a replacement supplierwileface additional regulatory delays and the ingption of the manufacture and
delivery of our MGuard stent for an extended penbtime, which would delay completion of our ctal trials or commercialization of our
products. In addition, we will be required to ohtarior regulatory approval from the U.S. Food &rdg Administration or foreign regulatory
authorities to use different suppliers or composéhnat may not be as safe or as effective. Aswdtreésgulatory approval of our products may
not be received on a timely basis or at all.

We may be exposed to product liability claims andurance may not be sufficient to cover these claim

We may be exposed to product liability claims basedhe use of any of our products, or productstiperating our licensed
technology, in clinical trials. We may also be es@d to product liability claims based on the séleny such products following the receipt of
regulatory approval. Product liability claims coldd asserted directly by consumers, health-candgers or others. We have obtained produc
liability insurance coverage; however such insueamay not provide full coverage for our future ial trials, products to be sold, and other
aspects of our business. We also have liabilityraasce for an ongoing clinical trial in Europe.urence coverage is becoming increasingly
expensive and we may not be able to maintain cuo@rerages, or expand our insurance coverageshadia future clinical trials or the sale of
products incorporating our licensed technology é@rketing approval is obtained for such products, mgasonable cost or in sufficient amounts
to protect against losses due to product liabdityat all. A successful product liability claim series of claims brought against us could resi
judgments, fines, damages and liabilities thatdtave a material adverse effect on our busingsmdial condition and results of operatia
We may incur significant expense investigating defkénding these claims, even if they do not raadlability. Moreover, even if no
judgments, fines, damages or liabilities are impase us, our reputation could suffer, which coudddna material adverse effect on
business, financial condition and results of openat

We may implement a product recall or voluntary matkwithdrawal due to product defects or product emtements and modifications,
which would significantly increase our costs.

The manufacturing and marketing of our MGuard speatlucts involves an inherent risk that our prasiusay prove to be defective.
In that event, we may voluntarily implement a récalmarket withdrawal or may be required to ddga regulatory authority. A recall of one
of our products, or a similar product manufactusgdnother manufacturer, could impair sales ofpttoelucts we market as a result of
confusion concerning the scope of the recall @ essult of the damage to our reputation for qualitd safety.
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The successful management of operations dependsumability to attract and retain talented personhe

We depend on the expertise of our senior manageamehtesearch personnel, which would be difficuiteplace. The loss of the
services of any of our senior management could comise our ability to achieve our objectives. Farthore, recruiting and retaining qualif
personnel will be crucial to future success. Thoame be no assurance that we will be able to ataradtretain necessary personnel on acceptat
terms given the competition among medical deviggiebhnology, pharmaceutical and healthcare conggamniversities and non-profit
research institutions for experienced managemeisntsts, researchers, sales and marketing andfaaring personnel. If we are unable to
attract, retain and motivate our key personnel,opérations may be jeopardized and our resultpefations may be materially and adversely
affected.

We are an international business, and we are exgbgevarious global and local risks that could hagematerial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operation:

We operate globally and develop and manufacturdymts in our research and manufacturing facilitiesiultiple countries.
Consequently, we face complex legal and regulatguirements in multiple jurisdictions, which magpese us to certain financial and other
risks. International sales and operations are stiljyea variety of risks, including:

« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

« greater difficulty in staffing and managing foreigperations;

« greater risk of uncollectible accounts;

- longer collection cycles;

« logistical and communications challenges;

» potential adverse changes in laws and regulat@gtiges, including export license requirementsidrarriers, tariffs and tax laws;
« changes in labor conditions;

« burdens and costs of compliance with a varietyoodifyn laws;

- political and economic instability;

» increases in duties and taxation;

« foreign tax laws and potential increased costscatam with overlapping tax structures;
« greater difficulty in protecting intellectual prape

« the risk of third party disputes over ownershipreéllectual property and infringement of third gaintellectual property by our
products; ant
« general economic and political conditions in thfeseign markets.

International markets are also affected by econgrassure to contain reimbursement levels andheak costs. Profitability from
international operations may be limited by riskd ancertainties related to regional economic caéonk, regulatory and reimbursement
approvals, competing products, infrastructure dgwalent, intellectual property rights protection @l ability to implement our overall
business strategy. We expect these risks will aggeas we pursue our strategy to expand operatittnsew geographic markets. We may not
succeed in developing and implementing effectiviicigs and strategies in each location where welgonhbusiness. Any failure to do so may
harm our business, results of operations and finhnondition.

If we fail to obtain an adequate level of reimbursent for our products by third party payors, theneay be no commercially viable marke
for our product candidates or the markets may be ¢chismaller than expectec

The availability and levels of reimbursement by ganmental and other third party payors affect tlaekat for our product candidates.
The efficacy, safety, performance and cost-effectdéss of our product candidates and of any congpptioducts will determine the availability
and level of reimbursement. Reimbursement andnesaie payment systems in international markets sigrificantly by country, and include
both government sponsored healthcare and privateance. To obtain reimbursement or pricing apgriovsome countries, we may be
required to produce clinical data, which may inwbne or more clinical trials, that compares th&t-edfectiveness of our products to other
available therapies. We may not obtain internatiogianbursement or pricing approvals in a timelyrmer, if at all. Our failure to receive
international reimbursement or pricing approvalsildanegatively impact market acceptance of our petalin the international markets in
which those approvals are sought.
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We believe that future reimbursement may be sultjeictcreased restrictions both in the United Stated in international markets.
There is increasing pressure by governments wodelwo contain health care costs by limiting both ¢bverage and the level of reimburser
for therapeutic products and by refusing, in soames, to provide any coverage for products thad hav been approved by the relevant
regulatory agency. Future legislation, regulatiomeambursement policies of third party payors radyersely affect the demand for our
products currently under development and limit alitity to sell our product candidates on a prdfigsbasis. In addition, third party payors
continually attempt to contain or reduce the co$tsealthcare by challenging the prices chargedhéaithcare products and services. If
reimbursement for our products is unavailableritéd in scope or amount or if pricing is set asatrsfactory levels, market acceptance of ou
products would be impaired and future revenuesnyf, would be adversely affected.

In the United States, our business could be sigedfntly and adversely affected by recent healthcestorm legislation and othe
administration and legislative proposals.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act Biedlth Care and Educational Reconciliation Acthie United States were enacted
into law in March 2010. Certain provisions of thesgs will not be effective for a number of yeansl ghere are many programs and
requirements for which the details have not yenlfaly established or consequences not fully ustbed, and it is unclear what the full
impacts will be from the legislation. The legistatidoes levy a 2.3% excise tax on all U.S. mediealce sales beginning in 2013. If we
commence sales of our MGuard Coronary stent itthieed States, this new tax may materially and esblg affect our business and results o
operations. The legislation also focuses on a numbkgledicare provisions aimed at improving quabityd decreasing costs. It is uncertain at
this point what negative unintended consequenaesetprovisions will have on patient access to mahriologies. The Medicare provisions
include value-based payment programs, increasedirfgrof comparative effectiveness research, rednosgital payments for avoidable
readmissions and hospital acquired conditions,péliotl programs to evaluate alternative payment w@dfogies that promote care coordinal
(such as bundled physician and hospital paymeftkjitionally, the provisions include a reductiontive annual rate of inflation for hospitals
starting in 2011 and the establishment of an inddeet payment advisory board to recommend waysdifaing the rate of growth in Medici
spending. We cannot predict what healthcare progia@md regulations will be ultimately implementedhe federal or state level in the United
States, or the effect of any future legislatiomegiulation. However, any changes that lower reirsdonents for our products or reduce medical
procedure volumes could adversely affect our bssipéan to introduce our products in the UnitedeSta

Our strategic business plan may not produce theeimied growth in revenue and operating income.

Our strategies include making significant investtaen sales and marketing programs to achieve tevgrowth and margin
improvement targets. If we do not achieve the etqubbenefits from these investments or otherwigéd@xecute on our strategic initiatives,
we may not achieve the growth improvement we agetang and our results of operations may be aé¥eeffected.

In addition, as part of our strategy for growth, mvay make acquisitions and enter into strategiarales such as joint ventures and
joint development agreements. However, we may aatte to identify suitable acquisition candidatesnplete acquisitions or integre
acquisitions successfully, and our strategic atksnmay not prove to be successful. In this regamgijisitions involve numerous risks,
including difficulties in the integration of the emtions, technologies, services and productseoéitijuired companies and the diversion of
management’s attention from other business concaitimugh our management will endeavor to evaltiagerisks inherent in any particular
transaction, there can be no assurance that werejtlerly ascertain all such risks. In additiorguasitions could result in the incurrence of
substantial additional indebtedness and other esqgeor in potentially dilutive issuances of eqsitgurities. There can be no assurance that
difficulties encountered with acquisitions will neave a material adverse effect on our businessnéial condition and results of operations.

We may have violated Israeli securities law.

We may have violated section 15 of the Israeli 88ea Law of 1968. Section 15 of the Israeli Sétes Law of 1968 requires the
filing of a prospectus with the Israel Securitiastiority and the delivery thereof to purchasersdnnection with an offer or sale of securities
to more than 35 parties during any 12 month peidd.allegedly issued securities to more than 3Bstors during certain 12-month periods,
ending in October 2008. Our wholly-owned subsididmgpireMD Ltd., a private company incorporatedenthe laws of the State of Israel,
applied for a no-action determination from the éi@ecurity Authority on February 14, 2011 in coctian with the foregoing. To date, the
Israel Securities Authority has not responded spireMD Ltd.’s application for no-action determiitett and we are unable to predict when a
response will be received. The maximum penaltiegifdating section 15 of the Israeli Securitiesraf 1968 are as follows: imprisonment of
5 years; a fine of up to approximately $317,000e¢@aid by management of the violating company;aafide of up to approximately
$1,590,000 to be paid by the violating company, @imyhich penalties could result in a material adeeeffect on our operations. We believe
that it is not likely that we will be subject toés or other penalties on an individual or compawagl.
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We will need to raise additional capital to meetrdausiness requirements in the future and such c@piraising may be costly or difficult to
obtain and could dilute stockholders’ ownership arests.

We will need to raise additional capital in theuliet, which may not be available on reasonable temas all. For instance, we will
need to raise additional funds to accomplish thieang:

« developing MGuard Carotid, MGuard Peripheral andudf@ Coronary with a drug eluting bio-absorbableimand any additional
roducts;

. gursuing growth opportunities, including more ragighansion;

« acquiring complementary businesses;

« making capital improvements to improve our infrasture;

« hiring qualified management and key employees;

« developing new services, programming or products;

« responding to competitive pressures;

- complying with regulatory requirements such asngieg and registration; and

- maintaining compliance with applicable laws.

Any additional capital raised through the saleafity or equity backed securities may dilute stadilers’ ownership percentages and
could also result in a decrease in the market valweir equity securities.

The terms of any securities issued by us in futa@tal transactions may be more favorable to mastors, and may include
preferences, superior voting rights and the isseiafiovarrants or other derivative securities, whitdly have a further dilutive effect on the
holders of any of our securities then outstanding.

Furthermore, any additional debt or equity finagdiat we may need may not be available on ternmrddle to us, or at all. If we a
unable to obtain such additional financing on atinbasis, we may have to curtail our developmetivities and growth plans and/or be
forced to sell assets, perhaps on unfavorable temmish would have a material adverse effect onbasiness, financial condition and result
operations, and ultimately could be forced to didicme our operations and liquidate, in which eveist unlikely that stockholders would
receive any distribution on their shares. Further may not be able to continue operating if we dogenerate sufficient revenues from
operations needed to stay in business.

In addition, we may incur substantial costs in ping future capital financing, including investmduainking fees, legal fees,
accounting fees, securities law compliance feéstipg and distribution expenses and other costs.nvdly also be required to recognize non-
cash expenses in connection with certain secumt@essue, such as convertible notes and warrahish may adversely impact our financial
condition.

Risks Related to Operating in Israel

We anticipate being subject to fluctuations in caemcy exchange rates because we expect a substautidion of our revenues will be
generated in Euros and U.S. dollars, while a sigo#dnt portion of our expenses will be incurred indW Israeli Shekels

We expect a substantial portion of our revenuekbgilgenerated in U.S. dollars and Euros, whilgaificant portion of our expenses,
principally salaries and related personnel expensgmid in New Israeli

Shekels, or NIS. As a result, we are exposed toiskethat the rate of inflation in Israel will exed the rate of devaluation of the NIS
in relation to the Euro or the U.S. dollar, or tttad timing of this devaluation will lag behind liation in Israel. Because inflation has the effect
of increasing the dollar and Euro costs of our afiens, it would therefore have an adverse effaatur dollar-measured results of operations.
The value of the NIS, against the Euro, the U.$adaand other currencies may fluctuate and is@éfd by, among other things, changes in
Israel’s political and economic conditions. Anyrsfgcant revaluation of the NIS may materially aadlversely affect our cash flows, revenues
and financial condition. Fluctuations in the NISkange rate, or even the appearance of instabildych exchange rate, could adversely a
our ability to operate our business.
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If there are significant shifts in the political, @nomic and military conditions in Israel and itsaighbors, it could have a material adver
effect on our business relationships and profitaibjl

Our principal executive offices and our key persgrare located in Israel. Our business is diregflgcted by the political, economic
and military conditions in Israel and its neighb@sce the establishment of the State of Isra&b4B, a number of armed conflicts have
occurred between Israel and its Arab neighbordafeof hostility, varying in degree and intenshgs caused security and economic problem
in Israel. Although Israel has entered into peagaties with Egypt and Jordan, and various agretnveith the Palestinian Authority, there has
been a marked increase in violence, civil unredttasstility, including armed clashes, between ttateSof Israel and the Palestinians, since
September 2000. The establishment in 2006 of argowvent in the Gaza Strip by representatives ofHthmas militant group has created
heightened unrest and uncertainty in the regiomith2006, Israel engaged in an armed conflict widzbollah, a Shiite Islamist militia group
based in Lebanon, and in June 2007, there wascafaéen in violence in the Gaza Strip. From Decen008 through January 2009, Israel
engaged in an armed conflict with Hamas, which ined missile strikes against civilian targets imioas parts of Israel and negatively affec
business conditions in Israel. Recent politicaisipgs and social unrest in Syria are affectingdbtical stability, which has led to the
deterioration of the political relationship betwe®yria and Israel and have raised new concernsdiagasecurity in the region and the poter
for armed conflict. Similar civil unrest and patisil turbulence is currently ongoing in many cowttin the region. The continued political
instability and hostilities between Israel andnigsghbors and any future armed conflict, terraaigttvity or political instability in the region
could adversely affect our operations in Israel atdersely affect the market price of our sharesoofimon stock. In addition, several count
restrict doing business with Israel and Israeli panies have been and are today subjected to ecomygotts. The interruption or curtailm
of trade between Israel and its present tradinthpes could adversely affect our business, findrciadition and results of operations.

Our operations could be disrupted as a result oétbbligation of certain of our personnel residing israel to perform military service.

Many of our executive officers and key employeesde in Israel and may be required to perform ahmiigtary reserve duty.
Currently, all male adult citizens and permanestdents of Israel under the age of 40 (or oldepedeing on their position with the Israeli
Defence Forces reserves), unless exempt, are tdaliga perform military reserve duty annually anel subject to being called to active duty at
any time under emergency circumstances. Our opesatiould be disrupted by the absence for a sagmifiperiod of one or more of our
officers or key employees due to military serviay such disruption could have a material advefexton our business, results of operation:
and financial condition.

We may not be able to enforce covenants not-to-cetepunder current Israeli law.

We have non-competition agreements with all ofemployees, all of which are governed by Israeli.[aivese agreements generally
prohibit our employees from competing with us orrkinag for our competitors for a specified periodldaving termination of their
employment. However, Israeli courts are reluctardrtforce non-compete undertakings of former eng#syand tend, if at all, to enforce those
provisions for relatively brief periods of timeiiastricted geographical areas and only when thd@me has unique value specific to that
employer’s business and not just regarding thegssibnal development of the employee. Any suchilibato enforce non-compete covenants
may cause us to lose any competitive advantagétiresfrom advantages provided to us by such canfital information.

It may be difficult for investors in the United Stes to enforce any judgments obtained against usny of our directors or officers

All of our assets are located outside the UnitedeStand we do not currently maintain a permanlecef business within the Unit:
States. In addition, three of our directors anaBdiur officers are nationals and/or residentsafntries other than the United States, and all o
a substantial portion of such persons’ assetsoaegdd outside the United States. As a resultait be difficult for investors to enforce within
the United States any judgments obtained against asy of our non-U.S. directors or officers, imtihg judgments predicated upon the civil
liability provisions of the securities laws of thimited States or any state thereof. Additionaiynay be difficult to assert U.S. securities law
claims in actions originally instituted outsidetbé United States. Israeli courts may refuse to Bad S. securities law claim because Israeli
courts may not be the most appropriate forums iithvto bring such a claim. Even if an Israeli caagtees to hear a claim, it may determine
that the Israeli law, and not U.S. law, is applieab the claim. Further, if U.S. law is found te épplicable, certain content of applicable U.S.
law must be proved as a fact, which can be a toresuming and costly process, and certain matfggsoedure would still be governed by
Israeli law. Consequently, you may be effectivalgyented from pursuing remedies under U.S. federdlIstate securities laws against us or
any of our non-U.S. directors or officers.
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The tax benefits that are available to us require to continue meeting various conditions and maytbeminated or reduced in the future,
which could increase our costs and taxes.

The tax benefits that are available to us requireolcontinue meeting various conditions and matebminated or reduced in the
future, which could increase our costs and taxespite Ltd. has been granted a “Beneficiary Entsgfistatus by the Investment Center in the
Israeli Ministry of Industry Trade and Labor whiotade us eligible for tax benefits under the Isrbali for the Encouragement of Capital
Investments, 1959. In order to remain eligibletfar tax benefits of a “Beneficiary Enterprise”, mest continue to meet certain conditions
stipulated in the Israeli Law for the Encouragenwmtapital Investments, 1959 and its regulati@ssamended, which may include, among
other things, making specified investments in fimsdets and equipment, financing a percentagesé timvestments with our capital
contributions, filing certain reports with the Irstment Center, complying with provisions regardimtgllectual property and the criteria set
forth in the specific certificate of approval isdugy the Investment Center or the Israel Tax Autholf we do not meet these requirements,
tax benefits could be cancelled and we could baired to refund any tax benefits that we receivethe past. Further, in the future, these tax
benefits may be reduced or discontinued. If thasdenefits are cancelled, our Israeli taxablermeavould be subject to regular Israeli
corporate tax rates. The standard corporate taXeoatsraeli companies in 2011 was 24% of theiakde income and was increased to 25% in
2012. In the future, we may not be eligible to reeedditional tax benefits under the Israeli Lawthe Encouragement of Capital Investme
1959. The termination or reduction of these taxeffismwould increase our tax liability, which woulelduce our profits.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Our Common Sick
We are subject to financial reporting and other reigements that place significant demands on our oesces.

On March 31, 2011, we became subject to reportinbadher obligations under the Securities Exchakgef 1934, as amended,
including the requirements of Section 404 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002. Section 404 requiresousohduct an annual management
assessment of the effectiveness of our internataisrover financial reporting and to obtain a nefiy our independent auditors addressing
these assessments. These reporting and othertaiigalace significant demands on our managenaeinbjnistrative, operational, internal
audit and accounting resources. Any failure to ma@ineffective internal controls could have a mateadverse effect on our business, oper:
results and stock price. Moreover, effective indkigontrol is necessary for us to provide relidgbiancial reports and prevent fraud. If we
cannot provide reliable financial reports or previeaud, we may not be able to manage our busiageffectively as we would if an effective
control environment existed, and our business apdtation with investors may be harmed.

There are inherent limitations in all control systes, and misstatements due to error or fraud mayurcand not be detected.

The ongoing internal control provisions of Sectiii# of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 require udéatify of material weaknesses
in internal control over financial reporting, whigha process to provide reasonable assuranceliegdhe reliability of financial reporting for
external purposes in accordance with accountingcyies generally accepted in the United States.mtanagement, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, dagst expect that our internal controls and disalesiontrols will prevent all errors and all fra
A control system, no matter how well conceived apdrated, can provide only reasonable, not absasteirance that the objectives of the
control system are met. In addition, the desiga obntrol system must reflect the fact that theeer@source constraints and the benefit of
controls must be relative to their costs. Becadigheoinherent limitations in all control systems, evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instanciaud, if any, in our company have been detecté@s€ inherent limitations include the reali
that judgments in decision-making can be faulty tvad breakdowns can occur because of simple evrarsstakes. Further, controls can be
circumvented by individual acts of some persons;dijusion of two or more persons, or by managemgatride of the controls. The desigr
any system of controls is also based in part upotain assumptions about the likelihood of futurergs, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its statedgjaader all potential future conditions. Over timecontrol may be inadequate because of
changes in conditions, such as growth of the compaincreased transaction volume, or the degremwipliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. Because of inhereitalions in a coseffective control system, misstatements due torerdéraud may occur ar
not be detected.

In addition, discovery and disclosure of a matesiehkness, by definition, could have a materiakasky impact on our financial
statements. Such an occurrence could discouratgrceustomers or suppliers from doing businesk w#, cause downgrades in our future
debt ratings leading to higher borrowing costs affieict how our stock trades. This could in turnategely affect our ability to access public
debt or equity markets for capital.
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Because we became public by means (‘reverse merger,” we may not be able to attract @tention of major brokerage firms.

There may be risks associated with us becoming@tiisbugh a “reverse merger” with a shell compahiyhough the shell company
did not have recent or past operations or assetsvarperformed a due diligence review of the stathpany, there can be no assurance th:
will not be exposed to undisclosed liabilities déiag from the prior operations of the shell compaS8ecurities analysts of major brokerage
firms and securities institutions may also not fiewcoverage of us because there were no brddalers who sold our stock in a public offe
that would be incentivized to follow or recommenhd purchase of our common stock. The absence bfresearch coverage could limit
investor interest in our common stock, resultingé@creased liquidity. No assurance can be givetretitablished brokerage firms will, in the
future, want to cover our securities or conduct segondary offerings or other financings on ourdbieh

Our stock price has been and may continue to beatitd, which could result in substantial losses fovestors.

The market price of our common stock has been sfiklely to continue to be highly volatile and cddiluctuate widely in response to
various factors, many of which are beyond our ainincluding the following:

« technological innovations or new products and sexvby us or our competitors;

« additions or departures of key personnel,

« sales of our common stock, particularly under agistration statement for the purposes of sellmgather securities, including
management share

« limited availability of freely-tradable “unrestrad” shares of our common stock to satisfy purcloaders and demand,;

- our ability to execute our business plan;

- operating results that fall below expectations;

- loss of any strategic relationship;

« industry developments;

- economic and other external factors; and

»  period-to-period fluctuations in our financial résu

In addition, the securities markets have from ttméme experienced significant price and volumetlations that are unrelated to
operating performance of particular companies. &maarket fluctuations may also significantly affédet market price of our common stock.

We may be subject to penny stock rules which widlka the shares of our common stock more difficudtsgell.

We may be subject to the Securities and Exchangen@ssion’s “penny stockfules. Penny stocks generally are equity securitits
a per share price of less than $5.00. The penmk stides require broker-dealers to deliver a statidad risk disclosure document prepared by
the Securities and Exchange Commission that previdermation about penny stocks and the naturderel of risks in the penny stock
market. The broker-dealer must also provide théoooner with current bid and offer quotations for renny stock, the compensation of the
broker-dealer and its salesperson, and monthlyext®tatements showing the market value of eachypstock held in the customeraccount
The bid and offer quotations, and the broker-deatet salesperson compensation information musives ¢o the customer orally or in writing
prior to completing the transaction and must begito the customer in writing before or with thetauner’s confirmation.

In addition, the penny stock rules require thabiptd a transaction the broker-dealer must makeeaial written determination that the
penny stock is a suitable investment for the pusehand receive the purchasanritten agreement to the transaction. The petogksules ar
burdensome and may reduce purchases of any offesimg) reduce the trading activity for shares ofammmon stock. To the extent our share:s
of common stock are subject to the penny stoclsrikes holders of such shares of common stock madyitfmore difficult to sell their
securities.

30




There has been a limited market for our common dt@nd we cannot ensure investors that an active k&irfor our common stock will be
sustained,

There has been limited trading in our common stouk there can be no assurance that an active gragirket in our common stock
will be maintained. Due to the illiquidity, the nkat price may not accurately reflect our relatiadue. There can be no assurance that then
be an active market for our shares of common stdbler now or in the future. Because our commoaoksi® so thinly traded, a large block of
shares traded can lead to a dramatic fluctuatighdarshare price and investors may not be abigualhte their investment in us at all or at a
price that reflects the value of the businessdufition, our common stock currently trades on tHeC@ulletin Board, which generally lacks
liquidity, research coverage and institutional istee following of a national securities exchangee lihe NYSE MKT, the New York Stock
Exchange or the Nasdaq Stock Market. While we bhterlist our common stock on a national securigieshange once we satisfy the initial
listing standards for such an exchange, we cugreatinot, and may not ever, satisfy such initistilig standards.

Delaware law and our corporate charter and bylawentain anti-takeover provisions that could delay or discouragé&eover attempts that
stockholders may consider favorabl

Our board of directors is authorized to issue shafg@referred stock in one or more series anétthé voting powers, preferences
and other rights and limitations of the preferrmtk. Accordingly, we may issue shares of prefestedk with a preference over our common
stock with respect to dividends or distributionsligaidation or dissolution, or that may otherwasgversely affect the voting or other rights of
the holders of common stock. Issuances of prefesteck, depending upon the rights, preferencedasnations of the preferred stock, may
have the effect of delaying, deterring or prevemtarnchange of control, even if that change of @bmiight benefit our stockholders.

Offers or availability for sale of a substantial mber of shares of our common stock may cause thegof our common stock to decline.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our comstock in the public market could harm the mapkate of our common stock a
make it more difficult for us to raise funds thrbufuiture offerings of common stock. As of NovembeR012, there were 17,599,891 shares o
our common stock issuable upon the conversion obatstanding convertible debentures and the esexf our outstanding warrants, all of
which are currently registered for resale. In dddijtthere are 68,942,775 shares of our commork stmzently saleable under Rule 144. The
availability of these shares of our common stockésale in the public market has the potentigiaiose the supply of our common stock to
exceed investor demand, thereby decreasing the pfiour common stock.

In addition, the fact that our stockholders, watrtaolders and debenture holders can sell substantieLints of our common stock in
the public market, whether or not sales have oeduor are occurring, could make it more difficult fis to raise additional financing through
the sale of equity or equity-related securitiethim future at a time and price that we deem reddera appropriate.

We do not expect to pay dividends in the future.gAsesult, any return on investment may be limitedthe value of our common stock.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on oumraon stock in the foreseeable future. The paymkdividends on our common
stock will depend on our earnings, financial coieditand other business and economic factors abaand of directors may consider relevant.
If we do not pay dividends, our common stock mayelss valuable because a return on an investmentrintommon stock will only occur if
our stock price appreciates.

Risks Related to our Convertible Debentures

Our obligations to the holders of our convertibledentures are secured by all of our assets, sosifdefault on those obligations, the
convertible debenture holders could foreclose orr assets.

The holders of our convertible debentures havecaritg interest in all of our assets and thosewfsubsidiaries. As a result, if we
default under our obligations to the convertiblbal®ure holders, the convertible debenture holdeusd foreclose on their security interests
and liquidate some or all of these assets, whichldvbarm our business, financial condition and ltesaf operations.

Our convertible debentures and the associated siim# purchase agreement contain covenants thatlddimit our financing options and
liquidity position, which would limit our ability ® grow our business.

The terms of our convertible debentures could magative consequences to us, such as:
« we may be unable to obtain additional financinfuted working capital, operating losses, capitalenditures or acquisitions on terms

acceptable to us, or at ¢
« we may be unable to refinance our indebtednessromstacceptable to us, or at all; and
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« we may be more vulnerable to economic downturndliaritiour ability to withstand competitive presssr

Additionally, covenants in our convertible debeptiand the associated securities purchase agresnperse operating and financial
restrictions on us. These restrictions prohibiirait our ability, and the ability of our subsidies, to, among other things:

« pay cash dividends to our stockholders;

« redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire more tld@mainimis number of shares of our common stoakoonmon stock equivalents;

« incur additional indebtedness;

« permit liens on assets or conduct sales of assets;

« effectuate stock splits until April 5, 2013, exc@ptonnection with an initial listing on a natidrs&curities exchange or to meet the
continued listing requirements of such exchai

« cease making public filings under the SecuritieshHaxge Act of 1934, as amended;

« engage in transactions with affiliates; and

« amend our charter documents in a way that woule@rady and adversely affect any holder of our centible debentures.

These restrictions may limit our ability to obtadditional financing, withstand downturns in ousimess or take advantage of
business opportunities. Moreover, additional defatrfcing we may seek may contain terms that inciodee restrictive covenants, may reqt
repayment on an accelerated schedule or may imgibee obligations that limit our ability to grow iobusiness, acquire needed assets, or tak
other actions we might otherwise consider appropioa desirable.

The conversion of our convertible debentures ané txercise of the warrants issued to the purchasersur convertible debentures would
have a dilutive impact on our existing stockholders

As of November 1, 2012, there were 6,999,714 shafreemmon stock underlying our convertible debesgand 3,655,775 shares of
common stock underlying warrants that were issoqalitchasers and placement agents in connectitnthétissuance of the convertible
debentures, for a total of 10,650,489 shares ofhcomstock. If and when issued, these addition®3M489 shares of common stock will
equal approximately 13% of our then outstandingeshaf common stock, and would immediately dilute current stockholders in terms of
ownership percentage and voting power. The terntiseofonvertible debentures and related warrantsagoprovisions that restrict the amount
of shares a holder can receive upon conversiorecise to 4.99% of the then outstanding numbehafes of our common stock. However,
these restrictions do not prevent the holders fsefting some of their holdings and then receividditional shares. In this way, the holders
could sell more than these limits while never haddinore than the limits. As a result, even withrérictions, the holders of these convertible
debentures and warrants could ultimately convettexercise, and then sell, the full amount issuapten conversion and exercise of the
convertible debentures and warrants, respectiirelyhich case our current stockholders would sutfferfull amount of dilution.

The holders of our convertible debentures mightdiale to exert substantial influence over us in theent that Sol J. Barer, Ph.D. ceases to
remain our chairman.

Under the terms of the securities purchase agregpuesuant to which our convertible debentures wgetd, if Sol J. Barer, Ph.D.
ceases to serve as our chairman due to Dr. Baesignation following a material adverse changthécondition of Dr. Barer or any member
of Dr. Barer’'s immediate family or the vote or weit consent of independent stockholders, we woeldtuired to appoint two persons to our
board of directors designated by Genesis Capitalsdds LLC, the investment advisor to our lead stees in the convertible debenture
offering, and support the election of such persarig the convertible debentures are either repaidonverted in full. In addition, in the event
that Dr. Barer ceases to serve as our chairmaanfpother reason while the convertible debenturesatstanding, it would be an event of
default under the convertible debentures, whicHdcoesult in the acceleration of our convertibl®eetures at the election of the holders of
60% of the outstanding principal of the convertitddbentures, an amount that Genesis Capital AdvIS0€ presently controls. As a result,
Genesis Capital Advisors LLC, or its assigns, hineepotential to exert substantial influence ouarmanagement and governance in the evel
Dr. Barer ceases to serve as our chairman anchtbgyexert such influence in a manner that is nosisbent with the best interests of our
common stockholders.
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We may default upon our obligations under our comtible debentures.

The holders of our convertible debentures may requs to redeem our convertible debentures aftesl@c 5, 2013 or upon the
occurrence of an event of a default under our cdiibe debentures for 112% of the then outstangirgcipal amount, plus all accrued inter:
In the event that we are required to redeem sonadl of our convertible debentures, we may not hewféicient resources to do so and we may
have to seek additional debt or equity financingdeer the costs of redeeming our convertible dielses. Any additional debt or equity
financing that we may need may not be availableeams favorable to us, or at all. Because our akihigs under our convertible debentures
secured by a security interest in substantiallpftiur assets and properties, if we cannot repaybligations under our convertible
debentures, the holders of our convertible debestaray have claims against, and ultimately maycfose upon and take possession of,
substantially all of our assets and propertiesuich an event, the holders of our convertible dieives would have control of us.

Risks Related to Our Intended Reverse Stock Split

There can be no assurance that we will be able tetnall of the requirements for listing our commatock on any national securities
exchange or to meet the continued listing standaadsany national securities exchange after a reverstock split.

Each national securities exchange has numeroual isting requirements applicable to the listioigour common stock and its
continued listing thereafter. We cannot assuretiiatiour common stock will be accepted for listotga national securities exchange follown
the reverse stock split or that we will maintaimgiance with all of the requirements for our commstock to remain listed. Moreover, there
can be no assurance that the market price of aunmmm stock after the reverse stock split will atljogeflect the decrease in common stock
outstanding or that the market price following @erse stock split will either exceed or remainuoess of the current market price.

If the reverse stock split is implemented, the rkisig per-share price may not attract institutional investrinvestment funds or brokers and
may not satisfy the investing guidelines of thesgéstors or brokers, and consequently, the tradiigiidity of common stock may not
improve.

While we believe that a higher share price may belperate investor and broker interest in our comatock, the reverse stock split
may not result in a share price that will attradtitutional investors or investment funds or $gatike investing guidelines of institutional
investors, investment funds or brokers. A declimtéhie market price of our common stock after thverge stock split may result in a greater
percentage decline than would occur in the absehttes reverse stock split. If the reverse stodk &pimplemented and the market price of
our common stock declines, the percentage declaeba greater than would occur in the absenceeofeherse stock split. The market pric
our common stock is also based on our performandether factors, which are unrelated to the nunobshares of common stock
outstanding.

Iltem 6. Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causesdéport to be signed on its ber
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

INSPIREMD, INC.

Date: November 2, 2012 By: /s/ Ofir Paz

Name: Ofir Paz
Title:  Chief Executive Office

By: /s/ Craig Shore
Name: Craig Shore

Title:  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary
and Treasure
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of Decemb&020, by and among InspireMD Ltd., Saguaro Resautioe., and the
Shareholders of InspireMD Ltd. that are signatbtmréto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16. 5aguaro Resources, |
Current Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissianJanuary 5, 201

2.2 Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dagbruary 24, 2011 (incorporated by reference taltixh.2 to Current
Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiampril 6, 2011

2.3 Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreehetie] March 25, 2011 (incorporated by referendextubit 2.3 to Current
Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiampril 6, 2011

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incopmmgincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 tan@nt Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiopril 1, 2011)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporatefigrence to Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on F&i filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 1, 2!

10.1 Mutual Waiver and Release, dated as of 222012, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and H&nod Sp. Z 0.0. (incorporat
by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to Transition RefortForm 10-KT filed with the Securities and Exchar@pmmission on
September 11, 201

31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamnt $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

101** The following materials from the Companyiarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enSlegtember 30, 2012,

formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reportingigaage), (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance SHagtSpndensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) CosddrConsolidated Statements of Cash Flows, artti¢/)lotes to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statem

* Filed herewith.

** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, theshactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deenw filed or part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendesidaemed not filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act 8418s amended, and otherwise are not subjelhiiity under those sections.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ofir Paz, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of InspireMD, Inc..

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsitéde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieding with respect to
the period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financiaghformation included in this report, fairly presentall materia
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Ed)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paitidy during the period in which this report s prepared

b. designed such internal control over financigbréng, or caused such internal control over fiakhreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princj

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati§slosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintprocedures, as of the end of the period coumyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. disclosed in this report any change in the tesyi$'s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

November 2, 201 s/ Ofir Paz

Ofir Paz
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Craig Shore, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of InspireMD, Inc..

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsitéde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieding with respect to
the period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Ed)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paitidy during the period in which this report s prepared

b. designed such internal control over financigbréng, or caused such internal control over fiakhreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princj

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati§slosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintprocedures, as of the end of the period coumyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. disclosed in this report any change in the tesyi$'s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. all significant deficiencies and material weas®s in the design or operation of internal comtvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

November 2, 201 /sl Craig Short

Craig Shore
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Form 10-€@1)the quarter ended September 30, 2012 of labfii, Inc. (the “Company”). |, Ofir
Paz, the Chief Executive Officer of the Companytifyethat, based on my knowledge:

(1) The Form 1-Q fully complies with the requirements of Secti@{(d) or Section 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoAd 934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Qlfapresents, in all material respects, the finamiadition and results of operations of
the Company as of and for the periods coveredignréport.

Date: November 2, 2012 By: /sl Ofir Paz
Name: Ofir Paz
Title:  Chief Executive Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-Q pursuant to Item 6013B)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctisns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdriQ for purposes of Section 18 of the Securkirshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of tiompany, whether made before or after the datheegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Form 10-€@1)the quarter ended September 30, 2012 of labfil, Inc. (the “Company”). |, Craig
Shore, the Chief Financial Officer and Principaidicial Officer of the Company, certify that, basedmy knowledge:

(1) The Form 1-Q fully complies with the requirements of Secti@{(d) or Section 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoAd 934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Qlfapresents, in all material respects, the finamiadition and results of operations of
the Company as of and for the periods coveredignréport.

Date: November 2, 2012 By: /s/ Craig Short

Name: Craig Shore
Title:  Chief Financial Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-Q pursuant to Item 6013B)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctisns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdrQ for purposes of Section 18 of the Securkirshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of tiompany, whether made before or after the datheegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




